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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH Vendor
#177511, by increasing the price limitation by $267,000 from $4,591,657 to $4,858,657 using
additional Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) hands made available through
remaining regular program year hands, from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, effective upon Govenor and Executive Council approval
through September 30,2025. There is no time extension being requested for this contract. The
original contract was approved by Govemor and Executive Council on September 20,2023, Item #89,
and amended on August 7, 2024, Item #28. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energv. Fuel Assistance FY 2025
02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $267,000

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE because the historical performance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, and the synergies that benefit the
FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federal assistance
programs as well as the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver LIHEAP (also known as Fuel
Assistance Program or FAP) services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the
five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with Department's FAP Administrator in the implementation of the
program.



l Us l:xcellenc>', Governor Christoj^cr T. Suniinu
and ihc llonorable Council

l)cccmbCT 18,2024

Page 2 of2

This amendment adds additional funding which was received for Program Year 24 (PY24) to existing
contracts and rnakes them available to the Community Action Agencies until the contract ends on •
September 30, 2025, rnaking them available for this winter's heating season. Demand and benefit
amounts have varied across the CAAs and these amendments seek to position these additional funds
to the CAAs that have experienced the most need.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested
to support this program.

espectflilly s itted,

Jared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

SOUTHWESTERN C0fl4MUNITY SERVICES, INC

AMENDMENT#2

This Amendment Is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as ̂ e
"State") and Southwestern Community Services, inc., 63 Community Way, PO Box 603, Keene,
Cheshire County, NH 03431 (hereinafter the "(Contractor").

s  Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter refened to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 20,2023! item #89, and amended on August 7,2024, Item
#28, the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified
in the Agreement and in consideration of paynfient by the State of certain sums as specified
therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parlies thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

I) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $4,591,657 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of$4,858,657.

B) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $4,591,657 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of$4,858,657.

.C) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$4,131,797 and inserting for program costs $4,398,797.

2) Continuance of Agreement.

the Terms and Conditions of t

Except as specifically amended and modified by
lis Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder

shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions

set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

Southwest Community Services, Inc.
U.S. DHHS Award# 240INHLIEA; Award Date: 10/27/2023

FAP PY24 ALN; 93.568

.Contractor Initials:

Date:

BD
of2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Department of Eticrgy

p...: ir/l jf By:

Jafed S. Chicoine, Commissioner

Southwestern Community Services, Inc

Da.e: ////^^ 3y: i^nALlJ.
Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE O

Date:

TTORNEY GENERAL

Assistant Attorney General

1 hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
Slate of New Hampshire at their meeting on! ; , 2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By: ^

Title: .

Southwest Community Seh^ices. Inc.
U.S. DHHS Awtrd « 240INHUEA: Awtrd Date: i(V37^023
FAPPV24AI.N:93.56S

Contractor Inhiab:

Date:&



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 19. 1965.

I ftjTther certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65514

Certificate Number: 0006663003

I&.

o

A

Tf-D

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORmr

Kevin W5tterson hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerWSecretary/Offlcer of Southwestern Community Services. Inc
(Corporation/ULC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called artd
held on June 14 , 20 24 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Beth Daniels (may list more than one person)
(Nante and Title of Contract Signatory)

Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements withIs duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community
^e State |

(Name of Corporation/LiLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and ad documents,
agreements and other Instrunrtents, and any amendmenb, revisions, or modifications thereto, \^lch may In his/her
judgnient be desirable or necessary to eff^ the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amendedj or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the.
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
daye prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that ft is understood that the State of New Hampshire will|rely on this certificate as evidence that the per8on(8) listed
above currently occupy the posrtjon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the
extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed irrdlvldual to bind the corporation In contracts with the
State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 11/12/2024

ame:

iiqhature of Elected Officer

QQaT<k Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF Li;*BILITY INSURANCE "^9^7^
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. |

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policyflea) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this ce^flcate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such 6ndorsement(s).

PRODUCER

The Hilb Group New England. LLC

PO Box 606

Keene -NH 03431 •

CONTACT Ana O'Donneil. CPIW, CIC

(877)352-2121

AnoHFAS- aodonnelKghilbgroup.com

IN8URER(S| AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICH

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co 16056

INSURED

Southwestern Community Services Inc.

63 Community Way

PO Box 603 , '
Keene' ' NH 03431

INSURER a Granite State Healthcare & Human Services Trust

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER e

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24/25 REVISION NUMBER:

InS?
LIT*

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS
rencTiFT

rrm
POLICY EXP

LIMITSTYPE OF INSURANCE

X

iWi POLICy NUMBER I

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

GENX AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY □
OTHER:

X PRO
JECT □ LOC

PHPK2636316

(MMreO/YYYYI

01/01/2024

(MM/OD/YYYY)

01/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES lEa oeeuftefical

MEO EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

Professionsl Liability

1,000.000

100.000

5.000

1.000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

$ 1m/2m

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
IE* pccictenil

$ 1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (P«r pwson)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2636315 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Pv KdiMnt)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
<Pw AcclOentt

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO X

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 2,000,000

PHUBa93672 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 AGGREGATE 2.000,000

RETENTION S 10,000

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILTTY

ANY PROPRlETORffARTNER/eXECUTTVE
0FF1CERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
II yM. doacriM undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS betO"

STATUTE
OTH-
ER

0 HCHS20242000036 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 E L. EACH ACCIDENT 1.000,000

E,L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1.000,000

E,L, DISEASE - POLCY LIMIT
1.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarlia SehaduM, may ba attacltad II mora apaea la raqulrad)

3a State: NH. All offlcers included. This certificate Is Issued as a matter of informailon|only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate
does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies referenced herein.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Energy
21 South Fruit St. Ste 10

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

crS

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

i  . 0 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. Ail rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDiENT AUDITORS' RPPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audrt^ the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31. 2023. and the
related consolidated statements of activitiesj functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the con^lidated financial statements.

,  I
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies as of May
31. 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance wth auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report We are required to be independent
of Southwestern Community Services. Ind and related companies and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with i the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the F^inanciai Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the financial statements, management Is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Southwestern Community Sewices, Inc. and related companies' ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available
to be issued.

Auditors' ResponsibiUties for the Audit of: /le Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material Imlsstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is|higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that.
Individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a. reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statement.

In performing an audit, in accordance wi
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and
audit.

h generally accepted auditing standards and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the

•  Identify and assess the risks of ma erial misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud orjerror. and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial stiatements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in |the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestem Community Sen/ices, Inc.
and related companies' internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by rrianagement, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise siubstantiai doubt about Southwestern Community Sen/ices. Inc.
and related companies' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time. I

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.



Report on Summarized Comparative information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2022 financial staternents, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated February 9, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2022, Is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
prooedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the. underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted iri the United Slates of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a wfiote.

Other Reporting Required by Government Aud/tfrrg Sfo/idards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
January 24. 2024, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our| testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southwestern Community| Services. Inc.'s internal control over financial
repelling or on compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s
Internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
January 24, 2024



SaUTHVffiSTERN CQWMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIFS

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MAY 31. 2023 AND M22

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land srtd t>ulldings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total properly

Less accumulated depredation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in related parlies
Right of use asset
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds
Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT UABIUTIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabiltUes

Refundable advances

Current portioA of right of use liability
Current portion of Economic Injury Disaster Loan
Current portion of long term debt

Total cuirem liabilities

NONCURRENT UABlLTnES
Long term right of use liability, less current portion shown above
Ecorromic Injury Disaster Loan, less current portion sh<^ above
Long term d^t, less current portion shown above

Total noncurrerrt ftabilities

Total liabSitres

NET ASSETS

Without dorror restrictiorrs

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2023

2.237.914

2.027.517
157.449

4-422 aao

30.392.465
647.670

9S12§4
32,023,399

16.520.026

15.503.373

64,178
98.159

53.895

1.556,493
111,044

384

1.684.153

239.270
158.107
235,401
166.988

1.248.787
32.364

3.685
183.158

2.265.760

65.795
144,966

11.103.963

11.314.744

13.580.504

8.106.510
123.392

6.229.902

2022

3,153.976

1,745,952
243.990

29.859.136
555,554
fl58Q72

31.372.762

15.527.483

■■1S.e4S.?79

94,230.

47.566
1.479.277

111,033
384

1.732.490

S 21.810.406 I 22.721.687

206,035
229,110
353.786
158.972

1,519.622

3,585
159.974

2.633.064

146.415
11.243.212

11,389.627

14.022.711

8,564.624
134.352

8.698.976

$ 21.810.406 1 22.721.667

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



PffPTHWESTERMgOMMUNITY SERVICES. INC AND RELATED COMPAMIFR

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2023

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor
Restrictions

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Government contracts
Program service fees
Rental Income

Support
Sponsorship
Interest ir)come i

Forgiveness of debt
Miscellaneous
lr>>Kind contributions

With Donor

Restrictions

$ 23,407.391
2,480,960
1,873,226
591,754

0.197

18;235
166,931

104,742
69.852

123.392

2023

Total

S 23.407.391
2.480.980
1.873,226

715.146

8,197
18,235

166.931

104,742
69.852

2022

Igtal

$ 24,553,574
2,991,407
1.817.636

669,175

26.520

1,099
90.609

156,954

Total revenues and other support >8.721.288 123.392 28.844.660 30.398,340

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS 134.352 (134.352)

Total revenues, oth^ support, and-
net assets released from re^rictions 28.855.640 (10.9601 28.844 680 30.398 340

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
. Housing services
Economic development services
Other programs

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
GAIN (LOSS) ON SALE OF PROPERTY

GAIN (LOSS) ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN UMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

9.895,617
3,090,471

9,417.446

3.113.506-
731.021
678,220 .

26.926,280

2,360.358

29.266.638

(430.998)

2,936

(30.052)

(10.960)

(458.114)

8.564.624

(10,960)

134,352

9,895.617
3,090.471

9,417,446
3,113.505
731,021
676.220

26.926.280

2.380.358

29.286.838

(441.958)

2,936

(30.052)

(469.074)

8.698.976

7.051.760

2.826.493
13.349.415
3.070,446-

658,791
683.000

27,639,905

2,031.266

29.671.171

727,169

(14.836)

(43.771)

668,562

8.030.414

$t S.106.51Q $ 123.392 $ 8.229.902 $ 8,698.976

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMSOUO*T«D STATEMENT OF FUMCTtONAL EXFCKSES

FORTHETEAWENOeOMAT

HeiM EMTcy
Fn>ef»m«

EdwuliOA

And

NmriOoik

HORWtCAA

fagmtfa
HomsIbs
SfvteAi

CcoMnric

Omlopmani
SAtvte— '

OdMT

Ffpwwi

Tmm

Ptaaram

MXUSAXAOt

■nlgiwat
3oa
TaW

PAyredlAxM
EmptoiMttAfiAfO
RMl/amA«n
,Ad>ic*tilb'^
Sank cAMsn
Canp«Mrco«l
ConlndMl
OapradAiion
DuMAA^Mratton
Oupfleetine
bauranc*
MatM
MMtbtg and conlA'ancA
MitcNiAnAOUt AJ^AnM
MbcatoAAOui ttxM
EdiApmArt ptMAcMs
CSoAAKpAAaa

-PeciApA.
ProfMiinMi fees
Sod dwralevnwtl and iraMng
Sudaeripiiens
Tdcpnon*
TlAVtl
V«nida
Rani
SMCecosa
Oiraci dient Aailttancd
inA'md •xpemat
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPAWIFS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2Q23 AMD 20??

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of deferred fmancing costs
Loss (gain) on sale of assets
Loss on Investment in Hmited partnerships
Forgiveness of debt

Decrease (increase) In assets:
Accounls receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Security deposits

-  (Decrease) increase in liabilities;
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes.
Other current liabilities
Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACJlVrriES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES '
Proceeds Irom sale of property
Purchase of property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from tonq term debt
Repayment oMong term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

2023

$  (469.074)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

8

2022

8  668.562

1.036.769 • 989,773
662 662

(2.636) 14.836

30.052 43.771
(166,931) (90,606)

(281.565) 38.041
86,541 (181.362)
(6.329) 7,572

(11) (5.243)

31.235 (32,551)
(71.003) 59.036
(118.385) - 109.783

8,016 10.118
(272.835) 789.667

(195.794) 2.422.056

3.301 3,840
(467.807) (831.642)

(464.5061 (827.8021

8,581
(187.127) (155,883)

(178.5461 (155.6831

(838,846) 1,438,571

4.633,253 3,194,682

S  3.794.407 $ 4,833.253



SQUTHWPSTPRN COMMUNITY SPR ^CES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIPS

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUEb)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

SUPPLEMENTAL OtSCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year (or interest

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total cash and restricted cash

2023

171,568

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND RNANCING ACTIVfTIES

Property financed by long term debt 227.421

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2022

176.903

5  2.237,914 S 3,153.976
1.556.493 1.479.277

$  3.794,407 $ 4,633,253

595.015



NOTES TO CONSOLIDAT

SERVICPS INC

:D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

note 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOONTING
POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of services to
the elderly, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and Sullivan
counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the areas
of education, child devetopment, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessnessj prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and Its related corporations. SCS
Management Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support services
and assisting individuals and |famiile$ in achieving self-sufficiency by helping
them overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is
derived from governmental contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Community Sen/ices, Inc. jand the following entities (collectively the
Organization) as Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has both an economic,
interest and control of the erjitities through a majority voting interest in their
governing board. All significant Intercompany items and transactions have been
eliminated from the basic consolidated financial statements.

■  SCS Management Corporation
.  ■ SCS Housing. Inc. |
•  SCS Development Corporation
•  SCS Housing Oeveloprnent, Inc.
•  Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsvllle)
■  Troy Senior Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
•  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene

East Side) |
- Winchester Senior Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Winchester)
•  Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
•  Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership

(Snow Brook) j
•  Keene Highland Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Keene

Highland) j
■ Warwick Meadow Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Warwick)

10



COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC AND RELATED COMPANIFfi

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
In accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principle (US GAAP).
which require the Organizatiori to report information regarding Its financial
position and activities according to the following net asset classifications. The
classes of net assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. .

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject
to donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpo^
In performing the primary| objectives of the Organization. These net
assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of
Directors.

Net assets with donor restnctions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; ttxise restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity.

As of May 31. 2023 and 2022.| the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions (See Note 12).

The financial statements Include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information In total but not by net asset class. Such information does not
include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation In conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles! Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with Ih^ Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31. 2022 from which the summarized information was derived.

Estimates " ■ j
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires managernent to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

11



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND'2022

Cash and Cash Eoulvalents

For purposes of the statement of cash ftows,, the Organization considers all
liquid Investments purchased wth original maturities of three months or less to
be cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits: The Organization has not
experienced any losses in suchj accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations
The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives,
rules and regulations of fedeijal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives,, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional
administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2023 and 2022, approximately 81%. of the Organization's total revenue was
received from government agencies. The future nature of the Organization Is
dependent upon continued support from the government.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at ̂ ear end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accpunts was estimated to be zero at May 31. 2023
and 2022, respectively. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on
overdue accounts.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records graiit and contract revenue as refundable advances
until It Is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which'time It isrecognized as revenue. |
In-Kind Donations / Noncash transactions

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or erjhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when ̂received. The Organization received $69,852 and
$89,366 in donated services and materials for the years ended May 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively {See Note i's).

1  12



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equiprnent are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of [receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost
greater than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation
is provided for using the straigHt-line method in amounts designed to amortize
the cost of the assets over theiriestimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

10-40 Years

5-10 Years

7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal governrpent. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and Impose restrictioris on the use of funds received from the
disposition of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31.
2023 and 2022 totaled $1,036.769 and $989,773, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as Incurred.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal incorne taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exemptfrom income tax on their exemjit function income.
SCS Housing. Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development. Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards available for the May 31. 2023 and 2022 tax returns
totaling $1,276,789 and $1.252,|122, respectively. These loss carryforwards may
be offset against future taxable Income and, if not used, will begin to expire in
2027. SCS Development Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards
totaling $509 and $513 at May 31. 2023 and 2022, respectively. These loss
carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income and. if not used, will
begin to expire in 2023. SCS Housing Development. Inc. has federal net operating
loss carryforwards totaling $89,166 and $55,129 at May 31. 2023 and 2022,
respectively. These ioss carryforwards may be offset against future taxable
income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2035.

13



SERVICES. INC. AND RgLATFH COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEWENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The lax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards
Valuation allowance

Deferred tax asset

286,957 S 274,630
f286.957t (274.6301

Drewsvllle. Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side. Swanzey, Snow Brook.
Keene Highland, and Warwickjare taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes
are not payable by, or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are
Included in the partners' federal income tax returns based on their share of
partnership earnings. Partnerships are required to file income tax retums with the
State of New Hampshire and 'pay an income tax at the state's statutoiy rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes."
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a systern for
measuring, the benefits of |tax return positions In financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income
tax returns for all open years |and has concluded that no additional provision
for income taxes is necessary in the Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10. Financial Instruments, provides a definition of
fair value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes
a framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair
value which emphasizes thatjfair value is a market-based measurement, not
an entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10. the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As| a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the Inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest pViority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows;

Level 1 - Inputs to the vali^tion methodology are quoted prices available
in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 • Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices In active markets, wriich are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation nriethodologies.

14



SOUTHWFSTFRM
RELATED CQMPANIFS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2Q23 AND 2022

Level 3 - Inpute to the valuation methodology are unobsen/able inputs in
situations where there is littfelor no market activity for the asset or liability
arid the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability;lncludlng assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses,
ac^unts payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates
fair value because of the short rnaturity of those instruments.

Support and Revenue Recognition

Contracts with Customers

Program service fees are reported at the amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Organization expects to be entitled for providing childcare services
to Its clients.

Generally, the Organization bills customers and third-party payers several days
after the services are perforrried. Revenue is recognized as performance
obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are determined based on the
nature of the services provjded by the Organization. The Organization
measures the performance otiligatlons of its childcare services to the point
when it is no longer required to provide services to the client, which is generally
weekly for childcare services. •
performance obligation.

These services are considered to" be a single

Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point In tim~e is recognized
when services are provided, and the Organization does not believe it is required
to provide additional services to the dient.

Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the
fact that all of the Organization's performance obligations related to contracts
with a duration of less than one year, the Organization has elected to apply the
optional exemption provided in FASB ASC 606-10-50-14(a) and. therefore Is not
required to disdose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of
the reporting period.

The transaction price for childcare services is based on standard charges for
services provided to dients. Under the terms of the State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services childcare subsidy programs,
reimbursement for childcare services provided may differ from established
rates. It is the Organization's pplicy to set its rates to t)e consistent with current
reimbursement rates. Therefore, amounts due do not include significant variable
consideration subject to retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of
reviews and audits.
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ICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIgS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023'AND 2022

Private Grant Revenue and Contributions fSupoort)
Private grant contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other
assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest
is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the
conditions on which they depend have been substantially met. Support that is
restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor
restrictions, if the restriction ]expires in the reporting period in which the
support Is recognized. All other donor-restricted support is reported as an
increase In net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and
reported in the combined statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Government Grants^nd Supobri
Grant revenue is derived frorri various federal grant agreements and various
state and private entity passthrough grant agreements and contracts to
provide funding support of the| Organization's programs and services provided
by the Organization including childcare, child development, social, health,
nutrition, employment, language, energy, and special needs services to
families enrolled In the Organization's programs. The Organization has
evaluated Its grant agreements against applicable accounting standard
guidance and determined that the grant agreements are contributions
(nonreciprocal transaction) I conditioned upon certain performance
requirements and/or incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts
received are recognized as |revenue when the Organization has incurred
expenses in compliance with specific provisions of the grant agreements.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units.
Revenues are recognized asjincome, monthly, when rents become due and
control of the apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The Individual
leases are for a term of one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control
of the leased units Is transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Partnership expects to be entitled to In exchange for the
leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed as
incurred.

V.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES INC. AND RFl ATED COMPANIFS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their
nature, such as salaries, rent, supplies..etc. Functional expenses are classified
by the type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management
and general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function
using a reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function'^
and use., . | -
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave,
fringe benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and
Human services. The indirect cost rate is 12% effective from June 1, 2021
through May 31, 2024.

New Accounting Pronouncement

In September 2020. the FASBjissued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by
Not'for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve
transparency In the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as
gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of contributed
nonfinancial assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings..and equipment;
the use of fixed assets or utilities; material and supplies, such as food or
clothing; intangible assets; and recognized contributed services. The ASU
requires a not-for-profit organization to present contributed nonfinancial assets
as a separate line item in the statement of activities, apart from contributions of
cash or other financial assets. It also requires certain disclosures for each
category of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The amendments in this
ASU should be applied on a [retrospective basis and are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after June 15. 2021. The Organization adopted the
provisions of ASU 2020-07 during the year ended May 31, 2023 (See Note 15).

In February 2016, the Financial Accouriting, Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update
transparency and comparabi
assets and lease liabilities on

(ASU) 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to increase
ity among organizations by recognizing lease
the statement of financial position and disclosing

key information about leasing arrangements for lessees and lessors. The
standard applies a right of use model that requires, all (eases with a lease term
of more than 12 months, to recognize an asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset for the lease term and liability to make lease payments to be^
recorded. The adoption of ^SU 2016-02 resulted in the recognition of an
operating right of use asset of $98,159 and operating lease liability of $98,159
as of May 31, 2023. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 did not have a material
impact on the Organization's results of operations and cash flows (See Note 6).
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest Is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate or at
a floor rate of 4%. The line isj secured by all the Organization's assets. As of
May 31, 2023 and 2022, the jinterest rate was 8.25% and 4%. respectively.
There was no outstanding balapce at May 31, 2023 and 2022.

LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt consisted o the following at May 31

New Hampshire
s for principal and

1% mortgage payable to.
Housing in monthly installmeni
interest of $891 through August 2032. The note
is secured by real estate of| the Organization
(NHH, 96 Main Street).

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on an
operating income formula applied to affordable
housing portion of the specifled real estate. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDFA, 96 Main Street).

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until the
project is sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHH. 17
Pearl).

e payable to New
is deferred for 30

Non-interest bearing mortgac
Hampshire Housing. Paymen
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until the
project is sold or refinanced. [The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHH, 41-43
Central).

18

2023 2022

$  107,975 $ 117,535

23.589 25,589

242,708 242,708

376,066 376.066



COMMUNITY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016. with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019,
and is now due December j2026. Under the
amendment, the interest rate is 4.94% and
monthly installments for principal and interest are
$1,957. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank. Milestones).

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. Ttie note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keene Office).

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on the
contract. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office).

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of| $2,463 including
interest through May 2039. Interest Is adjusted
every five years based on remaining principal
balance and "Classic Advanta'ge' Rate" provided
by Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston which
resulted in an interest rate of|4.67% at May 31,
2023 and 2022. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization TD Bank. Keene
Office/Community Way).

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment Is 'due and beglnping
in January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property| is used, for low
income housing through January 2025. The note
is secured by real estate of the Organization
(HUD, Ashuelot).

2023 2022

75,268 94,456

2.053,855 2,095,301

460.000 460.000

348.687 362.931

25,000 50,000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning
in January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property lis used for low
income housing through January 2025. The note
is secured by real estate of
(HUD. 112 Charlestown Road).

the Organization

payable to New
payments in the

Non-interest bearing note
Hampshire Housing in annua
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note is secured by |real estate of the
Organization (NHH, Second Chance).

Non-intorest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG, Second Chance).

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement
between the City of Keene and SCS for the
purpose of renovating Keene shelters. In total,
SCS will receive $472,000 Ifrom CDBG. The
agreement was amended during the year ended
May 31, 2023 to increase |the total loan to
$784,021. SCS will receive the funds as progress
is made. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization and will be fully forgiven providing
the facility serves low- and| moderate-income
Individuals for 20 years (Keene Shelters).

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note was paid In
full during the year ended May 31. 2023. The
note was secured by a vehicle (Ally. Econoline
Van).

20

2023 2022

15,000 30,000

794,189 794.189

281.406 296,217

761,210 629.280

1,581



INC. ANDREI ATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022 "

Dank in monthly
interest of $820

2.99% note payable to a
instailments for principal and
through May 2031. The hole is secured by real
estate of the Organization {Savings. Bank of
Walpole, 45 Central Street).

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene. New Hampshire. The note expired in
June 2022 and payment was not necessary
unless the Organization defaults on contract. The
note was forgiven during the year ended May 31.
2023. The note was secured by real estate of the
Organization (City of Keene. 139 Roxbury
Street).

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene. New Hampshire, with an original balance
of $240,000 reduced to $204,000 when the
Organization acquired the note from Keene
Housing in July 2020. No payrnent is due and 5%
of the balance is forgiven eachjyear through. June
2037. The note is secured by: real estate of the
Organization (City of Keenfe," 139 Roxbury
Street).

3.575% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for princifDal and interest of
$650 through September 2026. The note is
secured by a vehicle (Leaf. Dodge Ram).

3.75% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for princi'pal and interest of
$530 through November 2026. The note is
secured by a.vehicle (Leaf. Promaster Van).

4.373% note payable to a fiiiance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$534 through December 2026. The note is
secured by a vehicle (Leaf. Promaster Van).

6.04% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$626 through June 2027. Thelnote is secured by
a vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van).

21

2023 2022

69,327 76.974

77.100

180,000 192,000

23.914 30,888

20,166 25,960

20.766

26,649

26,576



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERV CES. INC. AND RELATED CQMPANigS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

5.64% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$621 through July 2027. The no
vehicle {Leaf, Promaster Van).

e is secured by a

5.88% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$631 through September 2027. The note is
secured by a vehicle (Leaf, Prornaster Van).

•Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing no^te payable
to a county in New Hampshijje. Payments are
deferred until the note matures |n June 2029. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG).

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable
to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to
fund energy efficient improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through jj^ugust 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHH).

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in "New Hampshire.
Payments are deferred until the note matures in
De(^mber 2028. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (CDBG).

Keene East Side-- Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capi^l Improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA).

22

2023

26,836

2022

28,337

640,000 640.000

140,210 140.210

900,000 900,000

93,821 116,841



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. WC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAKS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Keene East Side • Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficient Improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through ̂ ugust 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHH).

Swanzey - Non-recourse. 4.90|% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033,
principal and interest payalDle at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of
the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to
low income'housing use restrictions for the 30,
year terrn of the mortgage.

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly Installments
of $1,698, including interest at'2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to
low income housing use restrictions for the 40
year term of the mortgage.

Snow Brook • Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire focusing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
Including interest at 4.35% | secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictiohs for the 30 year
term of the mortgage.

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero Interest
mortgage note payable to| New Hampshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal and
interest payable, at the sole] discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the.
Partnership's land and buildirigs, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage.
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2023 2022

228,934 228,934

293,634 286,530

328,879 341.364

426.517 . 431.859

229,826 237,173



CES. INC. AND RELATgP CQMPANtgS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY '31. 2023 AND 2Q22

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
May 2032, payable in monthly installments of
$370, including Interest at 2.00®/o. secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage note (NHH).

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to |New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032. payable at the
sole discretion of the lender frorh the excess cash
of the borrower determined by
by the Partnership's land and
to low income housing use restrictions for the 30- .
year term of the mortgage note '(NHH).

formula, secured
buildings, subject

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions uijider the terms of
the AHP agreement. In the event of a default
under the aforementioned agreement, the loan Is
due upon demand with interest accrued at a rate
of 11.67% for. the period |the funds were
outstanding (Federal Home Loan Bank).

Keene Highland - Non-recourse mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF). due
August 2035, payable in monthly installments of
$3,122, including interest at 2.90%, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to
low income housing use restrictions for the 30
year term of the mortgage note (NHH).

Keene Highland - 30 year, zero interest, non
recourse deferred mortgage note payable to the
City of Keene. New Hampshire due June 2035.
payment of principal is deferred until the due
date, secured
Keene).

by land and buildings (City of

24

2023 2022

36,178 39,850

75,836 77,452

150,000 150.000

383.653 409,579

915.000 915.000



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

Warwick - 30 year, zero interest, non-recourse
deferred mortgage note payable to the Town of
Winchester. New Hampshire due August 2036,
payment of principal is deferred until the due
date, secured by land and buildings (Town of
Winchester).

Total long term debt before unamortized
deferred financing costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Less current portion due within one year

2023 2022

500.000 500.000

11.303.436 11,420,143

■  f16.2951 116.9571

11,287,141 11,403,186
183 158 159.974

? 11,103,983 ^ 11.243212

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31. 2023 is as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Thereafter

Total

$

Amount

183.158
190,399

197,955
180,203
146,598

10.405.123

NOTE 4 ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER LOAN

During June 2020, the Organization received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(EIDL) from the Small Business Administration with proceeds in the amount of.
$160,000. The EIDL is payable| over 30 years at an interest rate of 2.75% with a
deferral of payments for 30 months from the date of the note. Installments,
including principal and interest', of $641 monthly begin in December 2022. The
balance of principal and interest will be payable in December 2052. The loan is
secured by the Small Business Administration. The balance outstanding on the
loan at May 31,2023 and 2022 is $148,651 and $150,000, respectively.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICt^S. INC. AND RELATt-D COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The scheduled maturities of the

Year Ending
May 31

2024

2025

, 2026
2027

2028

Thereafter

Total

EIDL as of May. 31. 2023 were as follows:

Amount

$  3.685

3.788

3.893

4.001

4.113
129.171

§  148.651

NOTE 5 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the years ended May |31. 2023 and 2022, the Organization realized
forgiveness of debt income in connection with notes payable to Community
Development Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance
Authority. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $166,931 and $90,609 for the
years ended May 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 6 OPERATING LEASES

On June 1. 2022, the Organize ion was required to adopt ASU 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 642). As part of implementing ASU 2016-02, the Organization evaluated
current contracts to determine which met the criteria of a lease. The right of use
(ROU) assets represent the Organization's right to use underlying assets for the
lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the Organization's obligation to
make lease payments arising jfrom these leases. The ROU assets and lease
liabilities, all of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on the
present value of future lease p'ayments over the lease terms. The Organization
has elected to discount futurp cash flows at the risk free borrowing rates
commensurate with the lease terms, which was 1.80% at June 1. 2022.
Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying
financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under FASB ASC
842 and are recognized as Msts are Incurred. The Organization's operating
leases are described below. {

j  - .
The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements' at various financial Institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2028. Monthly lease payments range from $470
to $4,050. Lease expense for the years ended May 31. 2023 and 2022 totaled
$143,725 and $156,230. respectively.
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NOTE 7

NOTES

•LATED CQMPANIFS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THETEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The Organization elected to use the risk free rate of 1.80% on all operating
leases discount rate is 1. The weighted average
remaining lease term for opera

Future minimum payments as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2024

2025

2026

2027

Less imputed interest

Total

.80%, the weighted average
:ing lease obligations is 2.66 years.

of May 31. 2023 on the above leases are as

Amount

S  32,364

32.945

23.379
12.427

101.115

2.956

S  98 159

ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES
At May 31, 2023 and 2022, the| Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that Its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $149^156
and $143,703, respectively.

CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Sen/ices. Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SCS Housing Development. Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS
Housing Development, Inc. | are the general partners of eight limited
.partnerships formed to develop low-Income housing projects through the use
of Low Income Housing Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.,
SCS Housing, Inc. and SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed

various partnerships totaling approximately
at May 31, 2023 and 2022. respectively.

repayment of liabilities of

$11.650,000 and $11.760.000

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $27,360,000 and
$27,348,000 at May 31, 202o and 2022. respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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SOUTHWESTERN CQIVIMUNITY SERVICES INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED IVIAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
goveming laws and-regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be
required to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts.
If any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31, 2023 and 2022.

NOTE 9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31. 2023 and 2022. SOS Housing. Inc. managed
nine limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SOS Housing, Inc.
totaled $243,847 and $237.82;2. for the years ended May 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over, several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts' due and expected to be collected from the limited
partnerships and related entitles totaled $53,895 and $47,566 at May 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 10 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial interests in the following companies:

Cityside Housing Associates, LP
Mariborough Homes, LP
Payscn Village Senior Housing Associates. LP
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP
Woodcrest Dnve Housing Associates, LP
Westmill Senior Housing, LP |
Alstead Senior Housing Associates. LP »

2023 2022

$  (9.522) $ (9.516)
(73) (57)

(12.553) (12.539)
(2.643) (2.436)

107,416 137,205
20 34

(18.4671 (18.461)

$  64.178 94.230
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2Q23 AND 7077

SCS Housing Development, nc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates. LP. Mariborough Homes. LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates. LP. Warwick Meadows Housing Associates. LP. Woodcrest Drive
Housing Associates, LP, and A'istead Senior Housing Associates, LP. a 0.10%
partner of Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner
of Westmill Senior Housing, LP during the years ended May 31 2023 and
2022.

(

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP. Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates. LP. and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31. 2023 and 2022.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2023 arid 2022, consists of the following:

2023 2022

Total assets

Total Jiabllities
Capital/Member's equity

income

Expenses

Net loss

S  ̂1221 s 512nd

14,694
34.632

14,923
36.281

3,576
4.975

Mm

3,306

4.713

^1-3991 £ M 407\

NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions
of Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had
at least 30 days of service to the Organizallon are eligible to contribute to the
plan. The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $349,285 and $310,304 for the years ended May 31.
2023 and 2022. respectively.
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NOTE 12

NOTE 13

NOTE 14

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

GAPS/Warm Fund

Transport
MS Parents Association

Total net assets with donor restrictions

2023

$  116,369 S

7.023

2022

108,508
20,000

5.844

BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The boatxl designates a portiori of the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcello
GAPS funds. There was $12,951 and $12,792 designated by the board at May
31, 2023 and 2022, respective y.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related
companies' financial assets as of May 31. 2023 and 2022:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash arKl cash equivalerits
Accounts receivat^ie, net
Due from related party
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used
within one year:

Due from related party
Resen/e funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next tvvelve months

30

2023

$  2,237,914,
2,027.517

53,895
1.556.493

5.875.819

2022

3,153,976
1,745,952

47,566
1.479.277

6.426.771

(53.895)
(1.556.4931

f1.610.3881

^ 4265431

(47.566)
f1.479.277)

(1.526.643)
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NOTE 15

NOTE 16

NOTE 17

NOTES TO CONSOLIOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2023 AND 2022

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating experiditures, which are. on average, approximately
$2,320,000 and $2,350,000 at May 31. 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS/SERVICES

The Organization records the value of In-kind contributions according to the
accounting policies described In tjjote 1.
The fair value of gifts in kind Included contributions in the financial statements and
the corresponding program expenses for the year ended May 31. 2023, is as
follows;

Volunteer hours

Head Start.and Early-Head Start

Total

$ 69.B52

S 69 852

RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and, accounts from the prior year's financial state.ments were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be
issued. Recognized subsequen|t events are events or transactions that provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial
position date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing
financial statements. Nonrecogriized subsequent events are events that provide
evidence about conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position
date, but arose after that dale. iManagernent has evaluated subsequent events
through January 24. 2024, the date the financial statements were available to
be issued.

Subsequent to year end, on June 29. 2023, Southwestern Community Services
finalized the sale of the property named Drewsville Carriage House Associates
Limited Partnership, at 4 Common Road, 27 old Cheshire Turnpike, for gross
proceeds of $450,000.
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CONSOUOATCO SCHEDULE Of PUNCROMAL REVENUES ANDEXfENSCS

FOR THE YEAR EWDEO MAY 31. itn

HeaiaEMrgy ■Ad Homslaas HoMhig OsvalepfltaAt ooiar Total Maftagsmant 2023

t  PfwrsT Nutrirton Proonmt tasvleaa Safvlcas Pfooftma Piuuiaii trtdOafiiral • Tdti

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT .
OcwamMN cenNaeis 3 6S81.673 8 3.51X407 S 9.264.458 5  4,217 S  509.801 8 122.526 5 23,813.084 t  69X307 S 23,407X91
Pro0iam wiviea IMS 622,719 18X240 727.603 . 84X490 2.480.960 2.480.960
Ranul incDnte . 70.369 1.770.682 . . 1.830,051 23.176 1673X26
Support 136.476 44.743 239.918.00 X900 iM.414 143.846 714.694 282 713.148
SpCTNdrshR 2,289 - 5.928 6.197 - 8.197
Intsmtlncems 1.031 837 X401 4.042 91 2,622 10.924 7X11 18X35
Forgf«*MM M dMS . . 143.911 23.0SO 166,931 • 168.931
llfclMlMOCM 4.S43 3.480 12.123 6CL276 60.422 24.320 104.742
In-kind eantnOwSons . 69 832 69.852 • 69 852

ToiM fwtmm and othof support t 1Q.11fi.141 i SSTSSM S 9 931418 3 2 600 240 S  640306 f -12£L322 3 76 197)13 .  647363 8 28 844 680

EXPENSeS
Payrei 1  694.298 3 1.847.987 3  633.731 S  623.222 $  353.418 3 441,834 3 4.696,510 S  918.734 8 5.513X44
PayralMias 67.891 1S1S63 30.582 49.028 30,731 36.239 37X154 67.610 443664
EmpldyM bcnoAU 132.4S6 360.268 144.229 212,369 33.364 128.121 •  1.012.617 163.746 1.178.363
Ralifunsnl 3S.2S3 103.374 38.176 44.702 13.836 26.598 268.141 63,144 349X65
Aduartlsina 3.310 7.035 1.700 3,811 2.333 16.195 1.524 1X719
BarAcNsfpts 10 • 23 4.173 - 4.206 8,24) 1X451
CompMorcotl 22,147 21.189 21.646 28,650 le.col 11X333 147,767 260.300
Connactual 731,082 13.848 33.804 21.229 32.679 11.009 607.481 1171724 983.205

. 4.480 1.06O 489 287 6X93 11.110 17,405
OupSealinp 1.469 -12.587 ^ . . . 14.060 1X742 X.788
inaursnoi 19.459 16.378 38.947 70.125 19.735 9.030 167.690 44,378 21X068
Intarosl , X040 5.203 64.C04 428. 6X577 108.833 172X30
Maaiino •ndcontartnco 13.691 136 896 3.962 4.133 901 23.969 13,387 38.326
MtscaOanoous aipanM 1.203 XS99 45 1)0.109 1X041 1.184 146,163 30.401 164.563
MNcsBanaom iaxst . . 122.213 . 12X213 451 12X664
Eoujpmcffl pwehatu . 7.732 3.636 . 7.983 19.331 590 19.941
OfficaaivanM 66.290 12.574 31.714 12.403 10.330 1.830 135.141 33.063 168X04
Posupa 1.378 226 178 123 464 . 2.387 37.767 40.154
PfOfassionMlat* 2.826 - 6639 32.342 - . 41.928 99.770 141.696
Siafl dovolaamtM and kaMne 10.191 1.323 1,063 6.638 1.760 1 226 22.125 24.333 - 4X448
SiOacriphon* . . 115 . •  119 327 442
TeleprtOM 7,081 4.994 29.729 19.282 1.771 1.696 64,743 '60,156 124,900
Tiaval 7,440 19.611 128630 lam- 38,103 304.095 X630 21X745
VcMdo 18,982 651 1.633 25.000 93.361 7.639 134.168 772 134,938
Rant 19,200 1X900 . . 33,100 3X100
Spacacoat* 18.019 244,332 654.633 922.643 1S968 . 1.763,999 160.957 1,916.956
Mad diant auWanco 8.012.822 140,913 7.632.433 14 163 32.443 2X84 13.73X060 45.928 15.801.006
iivkind axpensas 69.632 • • 69.652 6X852

TOTAL nMCnONAL EXPENSES SEfORE
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATKIN

Aloeatloo of mmgement aod peiwrN npw«

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

9S9S.S17

esT^so

X090.471

270.911

•.417.44S

S2S.$33

3.11990S

27X930

731.(01

64.081

S78.220

39.453

M.92S.260

2.3E0.3S8

2.360.3S6

I2.3S0.3661

6 10.703.067 S 3.361.382 $ 10X42.979 S 3.3SS.435 $ 793.102 6 T37.S73 t 29.296.638 $_

29080.638

I 29.2aS.63S

8m hid«p«*d*ni Aurftet*'Rapoit
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aOUTHWggTgRM CQMMUWfTY MWViegg IWC. UtO RfLATFP CQW^AWIgg

COMOUOATEO «CHCO(JLE Of PimCTlONAL REVSMUEt ANO EXPeNSCS
fOB THg YgAH EWOgQ MAY SI tOti

REVEKUES ANO OTHER BUPPOItT ;
OovcrnfiwM ooniraeU
Pregrant M«vic* fM
RaMJtmcerm

Support
Spotnerahlp
bitomt tncoRw

f orgKorxM ot Pobt
tPitoWanaCMi

In-kM cortrfeuliom

Total lavonuo and oUwr tupport

EXPENSES

PainB
Poirallam
Emple^we banolit*
Rodnmorti

Advonitlne
earttCrtafgaj
Cotnpul«co(t
Contractual

-OoprotiaUon

Horn* Enorsv
Pwofama

S B.6ai.7SA
1.1B3.SS7

58^

7

10.270

Ouoa/rapiuraiion

Oupleatirts
inauraoca

tmaren

Mealing and confatanca
Mbealanaout axpama
MicaBanaout laxe*

Couipfnanl pwcrtasat
OlfteaaKpaflM
Poataga -
ProfaasionN

Stall deweloprtwii and SaininB
StibacnpUeni
TaNphona
T>a*at

VaMcio

Ram

Spaca CDsti

CNrad cSan aitlttanca.
In-kird easensa*

TOTAL fUNCnOHAL EXPENSES eEFORS
OENERAL ANO HAMAOCMEHT ALLOCATIOM

Aaocatkn of managamani and ganaral aapanaai

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPCNSeS

Educatloa

aad

Hwtrttlon

I  ).»8J74

14.491

3

1.033

W36g

Hortiataaa

Pmofan>a

Houatng
Sfvtc—

Eeaoomk

OavelepmeiH
Satvicaa

Othar Tout

Emrtm

Maiwgoraant
andOanaral

3022

Total

E 71123 BOS t

5  12.036.412 9  <701 9 71<19e 5  225.735 9 28951.304 5 603.370 % 2A.S5XST4

03.565 7B1J40 ,  . 046.475 8985.407 8000 2.901.407

84.048 1.713.405 . , 1.797.451 30.168 1.917.638

354.638 191.342 120.408 .  849.175 30.000 669.175

. . . 38.520 38.520 - 28.520

153 302 58 54 674 525 1.099

87.590 23.010 . . 00.809 • 00809

9,973 80.870 33.651 141.797 15.157 156.954

. . , . 89.366 • 99266

5  13 438 385 1 2610227 9 939 245 S  1321192 1 n.7M.in 1.. 6A4 73T S 96 3M340

9  5S1.4«9 9  1.553.713 9 601.469 5  67Z177 S 34D079 5 411924 t  4.131811 5  651748

45.132 127,557 49.649 51.549 30.490 31545 341123 66.379

137.544 387.109 140.333 217.637 27.775 137.184 1.047.571 101,743

31.440 95.678 33.687 49.044 18.083 18.580 243.710 61594

1.066 12.573 428 7.537 8.801 30.405 5.120

35 663 4.650 • 5.348 0.701

307 15.754 13.319 <001 14.919 - 52.199 127.747

026.075 15.258 87.421 26.033 31197 092.682 63.330
3 810 838.790 150.083

2.539 490 808 .125 3.663 11.730

8.860 - . • 1060 5.603

6,123 10.620 35.678 62,106 19.659 7.313 147.698 45,537

423 9.536 46,622 278 59.059 110.500

394 3.255 633 2.682 7.303 1.636

670 2.917 120 112.217 6.368 5.102 127.414 30.014
. 129.976 . . 121976 ISO

14.730 3.421 . 6.376 519 24.046 720

43.201 8.735 22.754 10.409 3.513 90 68,702 24.071

190 303 28 2* 171 - 796 33.027

1.076 <323 36,930 220 33.548 85.753

1.968 2.687 625 3.005 121 1.665 10250 0.781

. . 228 228 180

5.147 3.727 31.670 10,709 1.930 1290 53.481 46.594

4.715 18859 11.158 14.784 26.330 249 78.095 1.428

9.433 3.099 24.665 79.218 13.061 121374 1.420

9.000 16.300 . 24.595 • -  48.695

21.837 .305.133 456.408 886.317 19.742 25 1.589.481 164,182

5.338.825 212.648 11.724.070 11.007 37.540 2.953 17.327.043 -

89.368 - 69.386 •

7.051.760 ,2.838.493 13.349.415 3.070.446 658.791 683.000 27.639.905 Z031286

518.238 207.720 981.053 225.648 41415 50.194 20312S6 12.0312661

S 7.580.998 8 3.034213 S 14.330.460 8  3.396.094 3 707206 8 733.194 S 29 671.171 »

4.992.550
40A.MI

1.149,314
310.304

35.535
15.040

170,948
1.058,213
089,773

~~15.401*
14.163
103238

177,585
0.939

158238

1M.138
34.768

113.773
34.723

118.301

19,040

408
100.075
77.523
139,704

48805
1.753,633

17.327.043
89.368

30.671.171

5 30.871.171

Saa Mdapandam AudKoia' Rapotl
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gQtmWffaTEIH* CnMMUMtTY aCBVICgg. IHC.

SCHEDULE OE CZPCNaTURES OF FEOERAL AWARDS
fy> THB ve« gWQgP MAY 31.

FEDERAL ORAHTOR/

RASS.TKROUQH QRAWTORA>ROORAM TITLE

U.S. Dw»ftn*«*«« ot Aarfewnart

Spaciii SMppteRwiW NuMlM Pngram Itf
WtWWA. KlfMs. «« CM*an (wnc)

CN» and Adua Cti* Food Piogram

Pood OlttfteuUoB Clwtior

Cornnodty SupptofmnM Food Prooroni

Conmed«y Suppiofimni Pood Piogrwn (Food CoramodaiM}

Total U S Oniorttwaw of AoriuAuro

U.S. Daoartttwd ol Houtino t>d Urfcao DavoloomtM

CorrmWty OatWopmart BMCk Gnnla/StaM'a Proerarn and
Non-EmidamaM Oramt in Itowoi

COVIO-19 ConvntmRy DovdoprrMn Btock GnmaiSuia'a
Pio^Mii and Non^tiamani Grants » HaMaii

ASSISTANCE

U8TW0 PASS-THROUGH
NUMBER g>mqmff*iwe

10.SS7 StaMC<NH.Ocpartmaft)o(HeaeiiHwman8o>vicas

lO.SSS SiaiaolNH. DcpartrwdolEducslion

10.585 CommurttyAeUoopToofameaSsnap^timaeliCoonUas
10.565 CommunlyAcdoo Program Brtinap-liairimackCowaiaa

14.278 OtyotKaano

14.278 C4y ol Ciaremonl

'EmorgcwySolutton* OramPragfwn

COVID-19 Ernargancy SoluliorM Grant Program

Supportiya Housing Progtara

ShoHar Mus Cart

ConiitMum ot Car* Piogram

CorPnuum ol Cara Program

Conilnuum ol Can PrGomm

Told US DoportmantfltHousMgandUroan Oavatopmeni

U A [y>oaHfiianl ol TfartsoorWtoft Padaral TranaM Adn»>nt»lratfc>n fPTAI
Pomtuis Grams tor Rurm Areas

Tranatt Sarrlcaa Pmprams CiHClar

EnOancad MofaKty ol Seniors and Mdwdtmls wth OisAdtias

.14.231 sun ol NH. OHHS. Duraau of Honsirtg Supports.

u 231 Staia et NH. OHHS. Bureau ol Housing Supports

20.51)

Total US Oapmtnwm of Transportation Fadaral tranat AdmMtuaiion (FTA)

14.235 Stala of NH. OHHS. Buraau of Housing Supports

14.238 Ststt of NH. OHHS. Buraau of HowsMg Supports

14.267 Stata of NH. OHHS. ftaeau ol Housing Supporu

14.287 Stata of NH. CMHS. Buraau of Heu^ Supports

14.287 Stnt Of flH. DHHS. Buraau of Housing Supports

20506 siataolNH.OapartfnentolTranapottfiion

Sitia of NH. Oapanmant of Tramportalion

naatsTOOT NUMBER

010G90-S2600000-500589

UNtnoam

Unknown

UnknosMi

1S038-CDPF

45 Camral Sirael

10.0«2-762700001(0-500731

1(L(M2-7a27DO0O-1O2-5OO73l

lO^)42-7g27(iC0O4}74-S00589

10-042-762700004)74-500588

l(L042-76270000-074-$0058»

104H2-7OT700004)74.»0589

10042-78270000«74-90058»

04-OB-68-864010-2SI6

04-g6-96-984010-261B

FEDERAL

gXREWDfTURE

4.418

102.624

240.733

~37.684'

220.487

65.407

132.233

544.768

11Z367 8

368,773

118.162

107.240

886.175

657.165

•278;417-

187.971

305.243

4M.107

i.ee8.B03

361.464

92.381

Baa Notes i« Bcftadtda of ExpandHurM of F adtrai Awards
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gOUTMWggTFRW CQMMUWfTY CTWViega IWC.

SCHCOULC OF EXPENOrrURES OP FEDERAL AWARDS
POBTHgtgARgWOgQMAYSI.SPa

PEOCRAL CRAMTOM

PASS-THROOSH ORAWTORffRQQRAM TITLE

U.8>flmflmtTligLtirt>«ni!
Enwgeney RsiM AMasiancs Piuuivn

Emefgeney fWU AMttUnc* Fregnm
CoranpWM* State and Locat FiteP Raeonry Fund*

TotatUS. DaparnnamefTfaaatAT

UA DaoartmantclEnannr

Waaihantatton Aidatanca tor Low-inconM Partent

WaatharBaSon Aadstsnca tor Low-inuma Peraoft*

ToUiUS OapatimataofEnargy

U.9. Oapartmart ot Haatth A Human Saivteaa

Aging ClBatar
SpatialPragramaterinaAghtg. TWalAPartB.

Grants lor SupportM* Sarvlcaa and Sanior Cardata'
Spadbd Piogiama tar.ihaAg'no..Tdle lA Part B..

Qratoa for Suppor*ra Sarvleas and Santor Catdart

Oranls to Staiaa to Svppori Oral Heatm Woddorca AoMies

AciwtiaaiD Support Staia. TdbaL l^eal and Tantiorial (STLT)
HaaM Oeparmtrrt Raaportsa to puMc KaaSti or Haanhcara
Crrsas

Low Incoma KouaeltoM Waar Asasianea Program

Low Ktcome Heota Energy AatisiarKa (Futi Aaalauinet)
Low income Home Ert«syA»(Waitea(BW^

COVIO-19 lew tocoma Hotna Ertargy Aasbtanca

ARPA low Inccma Hocita Energy Aasistanca (BWP)

ComniwKy Sarvioea Blocfc Gram

COVlO-19 Convnurtiiy Seivtoa* Bidck Grant

Community Servtoas BtocA Grant • Otocrattonary

ASSlSTANCe

USTMO

WOWSER

PASATKROUOH

sramtor-swame

21.023 NewHampsMraHouting

21023 WawHampsWraHouatng

21.027 New Hampshire Houdng

S1 (M2

ai.0«2

Siato of NH Oepartmani of Energy
Slate of NH. Oapattmam of Energy

g3.<H4 staacfNH.OapanmanialEnaigy

03.044 Start of NK DHH& Buraai ot Eidirly A AduR Services

90.238 State of NK OHHS. NH Medicaid

93.391 SiaiaofNH.OHHS. DtwtoionofPuUcHeattiSenrieas

Slate oi NH, Ocpartmeni ct Ertergy93.499

93.968

93.S68

93.SSS

93.S68

State of NH. Department ot Enargy
State ol f*i. Oapartmant of Energy
Stale oi NH. Deparvneni of Energy

State of NH. OepanmeM oi Entrgy

sate of NK OHHS. Oiv. ot Ftmily Assisiattce
Slate of NH. OHHS. DMston of Econemac & Housing
SiaWty

935&9

93.569

e3S70 State of NH. OWS, Oiv Of Fam3y Assistance

GRANTORS NUMBER

ERA1.ERA2

OOFRF60:PH9S29A

Emergency Temporary Housing

02-S2-S2-S200tG33S60000^44«Ka7

02-52'62-S200t0-XXXX000OO74-S0OS87

02-S2-S3-S3OOtO-3394OOO(M)74.S00Se7

^49030315

1008368

90677150

O2-52-52-S30t0-tSeeO0OI>-5OOS87.
02-S2-S2-S20t0-24S20000600S87

02-052-052-52010-33940000
02-62-62-5200IO-33S40000-074-500667

02-OS2-OS2-fi30010-24490000

02-OS3-053'520010-2449000(M)74'500S87

45012170

500731

Unknown

FEDERAL

s 7.263.277

130.000 7.393277
* 62.710

S 7.456267

s 33Z73S

130 448 $ 363.181

$ 363181

•11

-57.067 S'

6.709.925

13S.169

1.679.232

16.383

402.239

114.705

-57.898-

373

97.445

229.492

8.441709

S1A944

22.652

See Noiaa la Bcheduls of Espendltiirea of Federal Awards
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cnMMumTY gfHVicgs WC.

SCHCOULE Of EXPEN0ITURE4 Of f EOCRAL AWARDS
PQ» THS YEAR gWDEP WAV

f EDERAA ORANTOR;

PASSpTHBOUCH crantow/proqram title

U^. D»fl»fW»frt et HwHh A Hwrnwi »«rvte— tcacrtftiwptft

HMd Stan Chotw

Hudsun

COVIV19 HMd Sun

ToWU.S. OcpMVMntd^HMlhAHMunSpMCM

U.Sl Duf Iffiii ftt itom>land gpcurpy

Emef^Mcy Food and ShaAer NaiioaW Be«d Prosram

ToUl U.S. Odpartntm of Homeland Secunty

TOTAL

ASSISTANCE

USTWO

{iUSBSB '

Bseoo

01900

PASS-THROUOH

QftAMTOR-aNAME

OiTKtfmtho
Oiract finding

"WlTOfrs miMDER

C1CH011494

OiCHDiieoe

FEDERAL

EKPEWOmjRg

1424.0B9

m.773 2.eoi.>g

87.024 SwaotriH. OHMS. CMcac4 Human Serncae

% 1ve67.37S

f (.948

s (548

s 22.729.014

8m Neiaa to SeJiaduta et Cxpendtuirta of FedenI Awaida
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N0TE1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2023

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal govemment for the year ended May 31, 2023. The
information In this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements oT
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federaj Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrativo
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.. it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the [Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditurejS are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to re mbursement.

INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. has elected riot to use the ten percent
de minlmis Indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

FOOD DONATIQN

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. had no subredpients for the year ended
May 31,2023.
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Leone.
McDonnell

Robeits

DC'VEK • Wf'l.rFiK'HO

N|-'^:THC™V

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER PINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPUANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GO\/ERNMENT AUDmNG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Stat^ of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Commilinity Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which romprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2023, and the related: consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have Issued our report thereon dated January 24,2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reportina
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s iriternal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpo^ of expressing an opinion on the effeptlveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc. s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deftciency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there Is a reasonable
possibility ttiat a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies', in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was lor the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not desigried to Identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, duririg
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies In internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,' contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with \A^lch could have a direct! and material effect on the consolidated financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do| not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliapce or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing. and| not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing StarKiards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
January 24. 2024
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IHWliiJ.» WOLFHIiORO

NORTllCOrW.V

INDEPENDENT AUDITOF^S' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Sen/ices, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Malor Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Southwestern Community, Services, Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) compliance with the types of | compliance requirements described In the 0MB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s major federal] programs for the year ended May 31, 2023.
Southwestern Community Senrices, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditors' results s^ion of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of'America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standardi issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost

2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal

Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliande for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Southw^tern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to. aboie.
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Responsibilities of Management for CompHance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations! rules, and provisions of cohtracts or grant
agreements applicable to Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Gompliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to abo|/e occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level jaf assurance but Is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit ccjnducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, Government Auditing Stenderds, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. iThe risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control!
Noncompliance with the compliance requirernents referred to above is considered material If
there Is a substantial likelihood that, individually of in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Southwestern
Comrnunlty Services, Inc.'s compliance with
as a whole.

he requirements of each major federal program

In performing an audit In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of materal noncompliance. whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on Internal control

•  over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we Identified during the audit.
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Report on fntemal Control Over Compliance
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management|or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a-type of
compliance requirement of a federal program |on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliarice, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of cornpliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control .over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies,, in Internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirernenl of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify at! deficiencies in internal control over] compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

-Our audit was not designed for the purpose
intemal control over compliance. Accordingly,

of expressing an opinion on the effectrveness of
'no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on intemal control pver compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Wolfeboro. New Hampshire
January 24, 2024
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAT 31. 2023

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the consolidated financial statements are
rejwrted in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters\ Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses
are reported.

3. No instances of noricomplianp material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and" related companies, which would be required
to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed durinq
the audit. ®

4. No significant deficiencies in internal cojntrol over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Repprt on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the
C

major federal award programs for Southwestern
ommunity Services. Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major-federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Treasury; Emergency
Rentail Assistance Program. ALN 21.023; and U.S. Department of Energy; Weatherization
Assistance for Low-Income Persons, ALN 81.042.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A ancJ B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUC

None

IT

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - IWAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2023

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUOn

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

2022-001 - Lack of accurate and timely reconcHlations

Condition: There was a delay in accurate account reconciliations at May 31,2022.

Recommendation: Internal control policies and procedures should be followed throughout
the year to ensure accurate and timely reconciliations.

Current Status: The Organization has made improvements to their internal control policies
and appears to be following the policies as' designed.
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Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Constituent

Sector

Private

Sector

Public

Sector

Board of Directors

Cheshire County

2024 Composition

Ron Nason

SCS Tenant

Heather Cameron

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Kevin Watterson, Chair
Clarke Companies (ret/red)

Dominic Perkins,

TreasunrlSecretary
Senior VP, Retail Administration

Savings Bank of Walpole

Jay Kahn
State Senator. District 10

Andy Bohannon
Parks. Recreation and Facilities

Director

City of Keene

Sullivan County

Mary Lou Muffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food
Shelf

Alstead Friendly Meals

Anne Beattie

Newport Service Organization

David Edkins, Vice^hair
Town of Walpole

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager

Liz Emerson

Planning and Zoning
Administrator

Town of Charlestown



KEY PERSONNEL

List everyone at your agency wtio will spend time under these contracts

Contractor Name: Southwestern Community Services Inc.

i':-' .
NAME--.:. 'V. v;, ,
t,

.  1 - i '

Job title
'  ' • 'i -

ANNUAL

. salary ,,

APPROXIMATE

% OF ANNUAL

'  SALARY
Beth Daniels Chief Executive Officer $121,534.40 0%

Margaret Freeman Chief Financial Officer $120,213.34 0%

Heather Amer Chief Operating Officer $82,000.00 0%

Sarah Croteau Agency Fiscal Director $62,400.00 0%

Terra Rogers Director I $60,320.00 50%
Sheri Saraceni Energy Service Assistant Director $44,720.00 50%

Ganicka Koy Energy Service Intake Technician $46,176.00 100%

Diane Graffin Energy Service Intake Technician $32,240.00 87%

Kate Bellantoni Receptionist 1 $34,403.20 25%
Kiisten Field FAR Intake I $40,560.00 22%
Tina Blanchard FAP Bookkeeper 1 $36,400.00 50%

Metinda Carroll Energy Service Intake Technician $32,240.00 87%

Jennifer Rummer Energy Service Intake Technician $33,280.00 87%

Alicia Takes Energy Service Intake Technician $32,240.00 83%

Michaela Lacoste Energy Service Intake Technician $32,240.00 87%

Shanna Moodv Energy Service Intake Technician $23,400.00 87%

Angela Pomasko FAP Coordinator i $34,320.00 85%

Anjelica Bums Energy Service Office Assistant $46,176.00 100%

Beth Buther Energy Sen/ice Office Assistant $31,200.00 50%

Svndev Santor Energy Service Intake Technician $34,320.00 83%

Mamie Bouchard EAP Manaqer/FAP Intake $36,920.00 50%



Btth Daniels

Exncriengy
Southwesiem Communiiy Services, Inc., Keene, AW
Chief Executive Officer
• Oversight of agency
• Working closely with the Board of Directors
•  Supervision of Senior Staff
•  Agency compliance

Chief Operating Officer
• Oversight for all general operations of the agency
•  Supervision of Program Directors
• Agency-wide initiatives

• Grant compliance
Director of Energy and Empioyment Programs

07/2021 - Present

03/2016-07/2021

10/2008 - 02/2015
Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor
Helping Neighbor, Senior Energy Ajssisiance, Wcatherization, HRRP, CORE, and
Assurance 16 as well as the employment programs Workplace Success. Work
Experience Program, and WIA.

04/2006-10/2008Career Navigator, Families at Work

Second Start, Concord, NH -
Career DevHopment SpeciaOst 11/2004-03/2006

Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
Maintairted participant records arid completed reporting requirements
Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.,
Case Manager, Homeiess Services

* Responsible for all daily operations

Keene, NH

09/2002- 10/2003
of hotting progrant. rules, and regulations

• Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
• Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes

Case Manager, Weifare-to^ Work 1 05/2000 - 09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
• Oain^ working knowledge of Deparlment of Health & Human Services.

Immigration & Naturalization Services, community agencies, and SCS



OocuSIgn Envelope 10: OASeeaAf-E2SF'40EG-d603-Ee4e0FB£872E

E4ncatk>D and Training

Leadership Monadoock

Graot Writing Workshop
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Interventioa
Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training
Tad Dwycr Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers
CarcerTrack

How to Supervise People
CarecrTrack

Career Development Facilitator Trainin
National Career Development Association
J20-hpur NCDA fraining

2016

05/2012

2012

2010-2011

11/2007

.  11/2007

09/2005

06/2005

01/2003

05/2002

Certified Workforce Development Specialist
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control die Bloodbomc Pathogens
Home Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services
Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

Prolects/ADDointmente

Current Board Member. Monadnock CoUahorate

Current Member. Executive Committee, leadership Councilfor Healthy Monadnock

Current Member. Sullivan Count Public Health Advisory Council

Created Emerging Leaders Program. SCS

References Available



}

Experience

2000 - Present

Southwestern Community Services Inc.
Keene, NH

Chief Financial Officer (2014 - present)
Supervising the quality of accounting and financial reporting of SCS; a Community
Action Agency. Total funding of $18 million; federal, state and local funding sources.
Primary responsibilities include overseeing the accounting functions, implementation
and monitoring of interrval controls, reporting financial position to the Board of"
Directors, preparation of the, annual A-133 audit, member of agencies Senior Staff.

Fiscal Director (2000-2014)

Responsible to lead and manage the daily operations of the Fiscal Department of SCS.
Primary duties include budget preparation'and analysis, financial statement preparation
and audit coordination.

1993 -2000

Emile J. Legere Management Corp
Keene, NH

Accountant

Provided bookkeeping for real estate manalgement/development corp. Managed 16
affordable housing properties. Responsible for cash management, general ledger, A/P,
A/R, financial statement prep, and audit pi^ep. Leasing Manager of large
commercial/retail property responsible for lease management and marketing of over 30
retail spaces.

EducaHon

Leadership New Hampshire, Graduate 2011

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
.M.B.A., 1999

Keene State College, Keene, NH
B.S., Mar\agement, 1991; concentration Mathematics and Computer Science
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PROFILE

Eighteen v<)rs olcuitorner Miv(e« an3 publi< relaiioni optnence m the
human jc^lcei 'ield. Recruiting, inier/lewlng and hiring for many Slate
Government portions Expert knowledge of local area agencies as well as
eligibilltY guidelines for programs admintstered by the sute and federal
governmeni. Meticulous, sef-motivaied, well organited, and a mufiltaskec with
a proven abiHty to perform In a fasi-paced environment. Able lo provide
exceileni customer service to a dherse copulation.

EXPERIENCE

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and
Human Services Adrninistrative Supervisor V Bureau of

FamilvjAssistance
November 70] 1-Curiem

Plans, evaluates, organises, and directs the correa application and
■mclfmentation of program poUcv and procedures, and accurate and lirnefy
benehc issuance by coonfinating, implementing, prioritiiing and leading a team
by supervjting ine daily work performance of lOramliy Services Speciabsis and
} Eamily tervices Associates. Ertiures that depanmem personnel are following
all procedures, policies, and guidelines.

Reviews and analyrcs program and performance marxagementdaia. reports and
statlsticaijinformaOon for performance implitaiions and reviCNvS with
subordinate staK to provide construalve feedback, goal- setting and correaive
action planning.

Participates >r> ih« devdopoteni and directly responsible for the esubllshment.
monitorlrtg and evaluation ol ntw work methods and office procedures to '
resolve operaitonal problems, and daily staff workload activity schedules and
contingency plans to respond effectively to oiarsned and unpiarmid fluctuatlont
m staff retourcts and Ditiria Office uafflc and caseloads.

Identifies staff training needs, approves trammg requests and coordinates the
proviston of (raining strategics to enhance professional staff devetopment
knowledge, and work actrvity as well as condt;ct presentations and trairungs to
large groups or area agencies.

Responsible 'or personnel decisions and actions including performance
evaluation, employee discipline tnciuding recommersding termmaiiort. assigrting
work, and Irttervicwing and seiccicn of new staff.
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SARAH CROTEAU

CAREER OBJECTfVE:

Highly motivated person seeking challenging position where my experience and education wUI bring
value to your organization.

Qualifications:

•  Kr>owtetfge of Microsoft Word, Excel, Eagle Browser, Fl^nciai Edge. PaperSave, and Yard) Genesis 2
•  Dedicated to exceptionai customer service

•  Self-moCvated team member with experience in team wort<

EDUCATION:

Bachelors of Science In Business Management
Minor in Economics

Keene State College. Keene. NH (2011)

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Account RMeivable

Southwoster Community Servlcea, Keene, NH (2019-pre8ent)
•  Responsible for maintaining entries into Y^l Genesis 2 regarding tenant receipts via ACH draws, datiy

intake of money, or HUD payments for Urnited Partnership and SOS properties

•  Maintains entries Into Financial Edge for general ledger and accounts receivable module
•  Responsible for daily and weekly balances for properties and SOS
•  Responsible for online banking activity forjsCS and Limited Partnerships
•  Responsible for cotlectjng/receiving and depositing all cash receipts for SOS and Limited Partnership
• Work with program directors and vendors ̂fbr follmring up and collecting payments
•  Maintains database for agency insurance for journal entries and submitting reimbursement

Accounts Payable
Southwestern Community Services, Keene. NH (2016-2019)
•  Enter invoices accurately and in a timety manner Into Fmancial Edge for the agency and properties

owrwd as well as Fuel Assistanca Program tor payment

•  Prepare and print checks for the Fuel Assistance Program

• Work with employees to resoNe any issues wiUi invoices

• Assist other team members tor reimbursement or submitting claims tor taxes and insurance
•  Retain records for agency owned vehicles for registration/insurance purposes
• Maintain fUe system tor paid/unpaid invoices

Accounts Payable
Hamshaw Lumber. Keerte, NH (2011-2016)
•  Prep and enter Invoices into Eagle Browser for 3 stores
•  Select and pay invoices for 2 stores and post payment
•  Monthly statement reconciliations for vendors Including credit cards
• Work with vendors and staff to research any problems

• Maintain organized filing system tor ell paid Inventory and non-inventory and unpaid invoices'
•  Assist accounts receivable by helping customer's pay on their account and answer questions
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Internship In BiMinoM OfRce
Monadix)ck Developmental Services, Keene. NH (2011)

PertOn^ standard oversight of bank reconciliation, accounts payatile, general ledger account review
and stats complianca

•  Conducted variance record keeping using the Great Planes record software including standard
bookkeeping

Waitress/Hostess
Lor^ghom Steakhouse. Keene. NH (2007-2011)
•  Responsible for substantial financial transactions
• Worked with customers in guaranteeing their satisfaction and positive experience

.  • VVorked within a taam dynamic that createij high cuisine quality and overall dining experience
•  Responsible for training new employees as a certthed trainer

PROFESSIONAL REFERENCES:
•  Available upon request



Terra Rogers

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Director of Energy and Emplovn)ent Programs with 10 years of

experience in a non-profit setting.

MANAGEMENT AND SOCIAL SERVICE SKILLS

Personnel Relations

Strong PC skills

Conduct employee reviews

Problem Solving

Lead and Motivate

Excellent Communication

Community Outreach

Decision Making

Interviewing

Database Management

Training and Development

Maintain Confidentiality

11/2006- Current

EXPERIENCE

Southwestern Communltv Services (Keene/Claremont, NH)

Director ofEr^ergyand Employment Programs 11/2015- Current

Oversee all dally operations for Fuel Assistance! El^rlc Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,
I

Senior Energy Assistance. Weatherizatlon, HRRP, CORE, and Assurance 16 as well as the

employment programs^Workplace Success, Work Experience Program, and WLA.

WlOA Employment Counselor 11/2006-11/2015

Provide career management services to eligiblel customers with a focus on helping them obtain
employment. Follows stringent guidelines and extensive documentation to help ensure

program is running with federal and state government regulations. Serves as a liaison between

customers. Instructors, school administrators and businesses. Strong understanding of

community resources to help provide appropriate referrals throughout the community.

Staples (various locations throughout VT, ME, NY and NH) 9/1996-11/2006

Operations Manager

Consistently promoted over a 10 year period. Established and maintained all store operations. ,

Provided proper training, honest feedback and energized staff to help promote world class
customer service that exceeded maximum sales goals. Fulfilled a broad range of MR functions,

including recruiting and training employees, store payroll, administering benefits, overseeing

disciplinary action and managing store personnel records.

EDUCATION

Granite State College* Concord, NH

Bachelor of Science (BS) In Behavioral Science (Magnum Cum Laude) Graduated June 2012



Sheri Saracehi

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Assistant Director of Energy and Employment Programs

•  Personnel Relations

•  Strong PC skills
•  Human Resources

•  Problem Solving

MANAGEMENT SKILLS

Lead and Motivate

Excellent Communication

Community Outreach

Decision Making

Interviewing

Database Management

Training and Development

Maintain Confidentiality

8/2021' Current

PROFESSIONAL WORK HISTORY

Southwestern Community Services [Keene/Claremont, NH]

Assistant Director of Energy and Employment Programs

Help assist current Director with overseeing at! dally operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric

Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor, Senior Energy Assistance and Assurance 16.

Great Clips Salon [Keene, NH] 10/2014- 8/2021

Salon Manager

Maintained all salon operations. Provided high end guest experience by providing a customer-
oriented atmosphere through extensive staff customer service training. Fulfilled a broad range-
of HR functions, including recruiting, onboarding, evaluations, staff training, administering
benefits, overseeing disciplinary action and managing salon personnel. Maintained staff

scheduling, supply ordering, salon presentation/marketing and attended comrhunity events.

C and S Wholesale Grocers [Keene, NH]

Accounts Receivable Analyst

Development and application of ail EFT Customers

EDUCATION

Keene Beauty Academy Park Ave- Keene, NH

NH Cosmetology Licensure

10/2006-$/2011

Graduated February 2013



^Canicka^Koy ,
r  (.rr ^ j

EXPERIENCE

Cuminunit> House, Inc., Bratllcboro. VT
Paraprofessional Educator October 2021 - Ma>' 2024
• Assisted teachers with classroom activities, maintaining a clean and organized learning

environment. |
•  Coordinated and facilitated extracurricular events and field trips to enhance student

experiences. |
• Developed strong relationships with students and families, promoting a positive and

inclusive classroom culture.

1 personalized assistance and specialized•  Supported special needs students Ihroug

Junuar>' 2020 - September 2021

leaching techniques.

Price Chopper Supermarkets, Kecnc. NH
Prict Accuracy Team Member
•  Assisted customers with pricing issues and ensured timely resolution of any

discrepancies. ' .
• Maintained organized inventor)* and accurately tagged items for clearance and special

sales. * -
•  • Updated and verified product pricing for accuracy, minimizing errors and discrepancies.

Customer Service Supervisor ' August 2019 - September 2021
• Monitored and improved workflow, impilcmeniing effective solutions for common issues.
•  Resolved escalated customer concerns elTicienily. ensuring a positive shopping

experience.
•  SupCfN'iscd and trained customer service stafl. enhancing team performance and customer

satisfaction.

.\ri5, Richmond. Ni l

Respite Care Provider
•  Assisted with daily living tasks, persona
•  Provided compassionate carc and companionship to homebound clients.
•  Supported clients' quality of life through basic housekeeping and meal preparation.

EDUCATION

August 2018 - February 2019
hygiene, and medication management.

Keene High School. Kecne. NH
High School Diploma '

SKILLS

Graduated June 2020

Assistive Technology
Conflict Resolution

Eduiaiional Software Proficiency
Inventor)' Management
Time Management

Behavioral Analysis
Ciistomer Relationship Management
First Aid & CPR Certified

Microsoft Office Suite

Sensory integration Techniques.



Diane GrafCin

CAREER OBJECTIVE

Detail-oriented professional wiUi 104- years of eip^ience and a proven knowledge of customer
commualcatioixa, cnatomer service, and customer needs assessment.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Covenant IMng ofKeene
Receptionist Juiy 2022'Present
• Answer phones and transfer calls to otheri^dents or staff
•  Input Work ordeia» Itinerary forms, Om Calendar of Events
• Auist residents with scheduling appointmeots and Transpoitatioa needs
• Managing mail and notifying residents ofincoming packages that can be picked up

• Faxing, allying, scanning documents or information residents need to have

SOVmEASIERNVESMONTCOmn/NITyACTION

Administrative Assistara/Recepti<mist.Jan.2021-Juiy2022
« Answer (diocies and forward to proper staff mesnber or e-mail staff with information
• Data eatiyfiom large amount ofretumedsorv^ and sending out Thank You letters to all of those that

sent in Annual Af^ieal checks. Copy, fold and stuff envelopes for over 2200 donors for mailing twice a
year for Appeab. Input daily cash receipts log and distribute log, staff by e-mail and inner, copy, scan,
and fisx documents to staffin satellite offices |

• Assisting walk-in clients and directing them to^ the proper staff member
FSNTON FAMILY DBALBRSETIPS, Keene, JVH

Accounting Associate, Oct aoi8 |
•  Answer Phones, screen or forward calls, provide information and take messages along with

interfiling all invoices for proper storage |
•  Receive payments and close invoices for services rendered and cash out register at end of shift

HOME HEALTH CARE HOSPICE AND COMMUNTTV 8ERVICBS, Keene, NH
Switckb^rd Operator/Receptionist, Jun 2625 - J^c 2017
•  Telecommunications operator using multiline phone system for in bouse and infield staff along

with clients and adhering to HIPPA regulations
*  Copy, faxing and ataembling informationa brochures and mailings for the staff and public

MONADNOCK SERVICE LINK, Keene, NH
Front Desk Receptionist, Jun 2013 ~ Jun 2015

•  Greet clients and walk-in's and page staff member that their client has arrived
•  Answering phones and taking messages along with copying, scanning and e-meiling staff

SMITHS MEDICAL, Keeoe, NH
Human Resources Ctffiee Assisfanr, Jul 2009 - Hov 201$
•  First point of contact for at^ and visitors |to assist them in answering their questions
•  Maintaining incoming and outgoing mall and inputting employee their data into data base

44ei»eJ«ya Keeae, mi. 03431 (603) 3SS-«3S4 duael2^.n.ooa



CHE8HIRB BIEDICAL CENTER^ Keene, NB
Medical ReeordM Coder, Jimi99$ - Jan aoo6

*  ICD-9 And CPT coding on inpAtient and outpatient records for biniaa purposes idbering strictly
to HlPPAr^olfttions n I

•  Anatomy and Physiology and Medical Terminology

EDUCATION

Rfrer Valley Commonlty College, Clajremont, NH
Certtfiaxtion Medical Admtrdstratfve Assistant

44 Blot Jay Ct K«ae,NH.0M3l (603)351^3^ diascl20M.rT.cofn



Kathryn F. Bellantoni

SKItLS

> Friendly and professional attitude
> Enthusiastic, knowledge-hungry learner
> Results driven achiever, and detail orientated

Work & Volunteer Experience

Oeskua Studio and Yearbook Publishing - Seabrook, NH 2018 -
Seasonal School Photographer j

■  Posed and photographed students, teachers, sports teams, individuals and
class and school groups

•  Set up and adjusted camera, lights and backdrop accessories
•  Ensured confidentiality related to the school and all students
•  Maintained friendly communication with students and staff to produce quality

photographs

2013-2016

for activities and arranged bulletin board

Ashuelot Head Start - Ashuelot, NH
Volunteer

■  Organiaed materials and classroom
displays'

•  Prepared and served meals in accoijdance to nutrition guidelines
•  Helped teach basic skills, such as color, letter, and numbers recognition
•- Assisted with the Early Sprouts program, helping children to prepare and eat

healthy foods

Monadnock Vending - Keene, NH 2006-2007
Cafeteria Services at Timken
' Cleaned and sanitized work areas, and loaded equipment in dishwasher
• Stocked refrigerator and stored food in designated containers
" Assisted cook with various tasks
• Prepared and maintained the salad bar

■ Operated cash register, handled money, and gave correct change

National Orange Mutual Insurance Company - Keene. NH 2002-2003
Data Entry |

•  Processed, prepared, and submitted applications for coverage to insurance
■ Reviewed and verified data on insurance applications and policies
• Modified, updated, and processed existing policies and claims to reflect any

change in beneficiary, amount of coverage, or type of insurance

Education AND Training

Rochester Community Education - Roc
Adult High School Diploma

Dublin Christian Academy - Dublin, NH

lester, NH 2019

1998-2002
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KRISTEN FIELD

SKILLS

ln>depdi knowledge of

craunra informed care

Compasslonace

Knowledge of local
resources

Calm demeanor, even in

crisis

.Excellent time management

Strong ability to hold space
for others

Strong office skills
(organized, accurate, written

communication, etc.)

Experience diffusing difficult
situations

Extensive knowledge of
menal health diagnosis' and

neurodiversicy

Knovdedge of court systems
and legal procedures

>9:'r !te»'

I.'*-; i;

EXPERIENCE

ENERGY CONSERVATION PROGRAM ASSISTANT

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES - KEENE, NH
I  January 2022 • Present

Direct cliw communication regarding the Weatheriation program
process; maintaining waitlists, priority lists, client outreach: administration
of the 21 In 21 community project including client communication and

managing scheduling; ordering supplies for ECP staff: creating and
maintaining training materials for agency staff: onboarding new staff:

processing Incoming program mail; other duties as assigned .

ENERGY SERVICES INTAKE TECHNICIAN

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES - KEENE, NH
February 2018 - Present

Processing applications for clients wishing to apply for hjel and electric
assisunce; determining which households fit the criteria for energy
emergencies: referrals to outside agencies for additional assistance:
responsible for creating of Intake Technician and Program Assistant

Training Manuals: often called upon to create or re<vamp forms and client
correspondence

PROGRAM ASSISTANT

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES - KEENE. NH
j  June 2017 - February 2018

Reception duties; accepting deliveries; routing client calls to the appropriate
progr^; diffusing angry clients in the lobby to determine how to best serve

them; woi^ng within the Fuel Assistance Program to provide clerical
support; scheduling appointments for suff; assisted with mass mailings;

other duties as assigned

PRODUCTION ASSISTANT

C.E. BRADLEY LABORATORIES-BRATTLEBORO. VT

September 2015 - June 2017

Contact and coordinate pick-ups and ship-outs with various transportation
companies; Log and record retains for later testing and sampling; data
entry; create bill of ladings for shipments and customs paperwork for

shipments out of country

.rffJ
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BILLING.CLERK

C.E. BRADLEY LABORATORIES - BRATTLEBORO. VT
January 2012 - September 2015

Invoice customers for orders placed: Track usage and sales: Check pricing
for incomingjorders as well as updating raw material costs and filing pricing

cards: Answer phones and respond to a variety of customer inquiries

CUSTOMER SERVICE

UNITED NATURAL FOODS, INC - CHESTERFIELD, NH
September 2006 - August 2008; January 2010 - May 201 1

Processing orders for customers; answering questions regarding products
and deliveries; listen to customer complaints and resolve to the best of my
ability; created allocation orders for Whole Foods: worked closely with the

Operations Manager to create orders for Blue Marble Brands

QUALITY CONTROL ASSOCIATE
UNITED NATURAL FOODS. INC - CHESTERFIELD, NH

August 2008 - January 2010
Organized and collected organic certification for over 800 vendors; verified

all legal information on certificates pertaining to USDA regulations;
processed credits for vendors on returned product; ran out of stock

reports for accounting

RECEPTION

WINSTON L. PROUTY CENTER - BRATTLEBORO, VT

March 2006 - September 2006
Answered phones: Greeted parenu coming into office; Helped to organize

fund-raising drives: Helped to put information together for state
certi^cation

RECEPTION

STATE FARM INSURANCE AGENCY - BRATTLEBORO. VT

March 2006 - September 2006

Entered billing information for customers: entered payments into system;
answered phones: began insurance process for new customers

if- % ■■■ ■ ■ ■
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EDUCATION

B.A. FORENSIC PSYCHOLOGY - 2018
MINOR IN CRIMINAL JUSTICE
Southern New Hampshire University

CPA- 27

Classes included; Abncrn^l psychology; Introduction to Psychology;
Introdurton to Criminal Justice: Corrections in the US; Counseling

Processes; Crime and Violence: Criminal Law; Criminal Psychology; Ethics
and the Criminal Justice Leaden Forensic Law; Forensic Psychology; Human

Growth wd Development; Introduction to Human Services; Juvenile
Justice: Offender Rehabilitation: Psychology of Personality; Psychopaths.
SociopathsJ and Serial Killers: Research Investigation; Sociology of Crime

and Violence; Sociology of Deviant Behavior. Victims and the Justice System

CERTIFICATION IN PEER TRAUMA RECOVERY COACHING
The International Association of Trauma Recovery Coaching

Material covered includes: Introduction to Trauma and Its Impact on
Children: Iniergenerationaf Trauma: Psychological. Emotional, and

Relation^ Impaa of Trauma; Addiction and Trauma Informed Care;
Attachment and Attunemenc B^ic Coaching Skills: Trauma Recovery
Coaching Skills; Adjunctive and Support Tools; Appointment protocols
(including establishing client safety); Bodywork: Self-Care for Coaches:

<  various business related lectures

This certification program also includes (2 hours of coaching practice: 5
hours of practicum coaching; a certification exam: and a portfolio

CONTINUING EDUCATION

•  N^inual Trauma Summit - June 22-^ and 23'* 2020; 20 CECs
•  Virtual Trauma Summit - June I9«*' and 20»-2C2l: 20 CECs

IV ^ Sp S v.- --b •■• •• < ••'c't .r'.t



Tina Blanchard

Professional Summary

Administrative professional with 15+ years
of experience with excellent
communication skills. Extremely proficient
at multitasking, Prioritizing and meeting

deadlines. Highly organized with attention
to detail. Answering high volume of calls
while handing in-person inquiries from

clients and colleagues. Ability to work in a
face-paced environment.

Work History

Billing Specialist | Adventure Lirnouslne &
TransisprtatiOn | 9/21^2020 - Current



support tasks as directed In a timely

manner. Utilized corr puter along with

other office machinery.

Administrative Assistant to the Board of
Selectmen / Assessors Office | Town of
Westmoreland, NH | 2006
to 2011

Attended Selectmen meetings. Prepared

minutes as well as the Selectmen's

agenda. Also assem Died the annual report

Prepared Warrants for the Tax Collector
and updating property cards in the
assessing software,

rentals and assisted

with various tasks, h

outgoing calls. Scan

Scheduled town hall

other board chairmen

andled in and

led, sorted and filed

all incoming and outgoing mail as well as
maintained the company's website.

Education



Jennifer Plummer

Careei' Goal
I am working on continuing to develop skills needed to work In Human Services work.

Education
September 20n-May2016

Keenc State College. Kecne NH - B.A. Engiish Literature mth Concentration in Writing

Minors: Psychology, Philosophy, and Women and Gender Studies

Additional Education
WorkReady NH October 2016-November 2016

• Developed Confidence and Soft Skills

• Gold Score on the Work Keys Exam, by ACT to Assess Valued Skills in the Workplace

Certified Trofninss

• Emergency Response Training 2015

• Suicide Prevention Training 2015

• Domestic Vlolenee. Trauma, Mental Health & Substance Abuse 2014

Conferences

• CLPP (Reproductive Rights) Conference April 2016

• BACCHUS (Peer Education) Conference March 2015 & 2016

• Men and Masculinity ConfererKe March 2015

• Annual Weekend Leadership Retreat October 2011 - October 2015

Scrvicc-Lcarning Projects
Historical Society January 2016 - May 2016

• Cataloged Articles About what Local Women were Doing During World War

• Learned How to Keep Effective Field Notes^
MonadrH>ck Alcohol and Drug Abuse Coalition September 2015 • December 2015

• Practiced Searching for Small. Local Grants

• Worked With a Group to find 20 loState, fjrlmarily Local Grants
Keene State College English Department November 2014 - December 2014

• Created Posters and Brochures for Keene State College English Department Literature and Wrltlrig

Options

• Reformatted the Course Advising Sheets for the Literature and Writing Options
Senior Project-Learning More About Victim Advowtes September 2011-June 2011
• Worked with Attorney General's Office in Connection with Victim Witness Advocates
• Learned about Case Work As Both an Attorney and a Victim Witness Advocate with Focuses on

Domestic Violence



Sludenl Organi/alions
National Collegiate Scholars February 2011- Preset.

Mentors In Violence Prevention September 2011 -jMay 2016
• Learned Effective Methods of Group Peer Education

• Led Discussions about a Variety of Topics Related to Relationship Violence and Sexual Assault

• Coordinated and Created Programs as Team Leader

Volunteer Work |
Walk-A-Mlle Planning Committee January 2012-^ril 2013
• Helped Plan Walk-A-Mile In Her Shoes and Participated in Advertising

• Coordinated the Sign-Up Tables from March 2012 until April 2012

Experience
November 2010- Present ,

Michaels, Keenc NH - Frame Shop Manaxer

• Worked with Customers to Design Framing Orders

• Oversaw Frameshop and Framers

• Maintained 5-Star Standards

May 2017 - November 2018

Michaels, Keene NH - Customer Experience Manager

• Closed Nights and Weekends

• Broke Down Registers at the End of the Ni^t

• Ensured Positive Customer Experience

• Supervised Front End

December 2016-May 2017

Michaels, Keene NH - Store Associate

• Cashier and Floor Work

• Sold Highest Amount of Books for Book Dtjive between March and April
• Quickly Helped Customers Locate Items on the Floor

• Helped Customers Find Alternatives For Products We Did Not Carry

February20l2 • May 2016

Keene Stale College, Keene NH - Tutor
• Tutored both Logical Argumentation and Human Anatomy and Physiology

• Created Tutoring Plan Before Each Session



Alicia T akess
Cosmetologist/Shift Manager

Contact

Education

01/2008

GED

Adult Learning Center

Claremoni. NH

11/2008-01/2010

Cosmetology
Keene Beauty Academy

Keene. NH

Sumntaiy

Ambitious Cosmetologist equipped to handle busy front desk

operations. Goat oriented and meticulous professional committed to

contributing to company growth. Drives company success with

uncompromising work ethic, time management expertise and
prioritization skills. Responsible and reliable professional committed to

utmost level of customer service. Focused individual with 13 years of

hands-on experience answering phone calls, scheduling appointments
and directing guests. Compassionate shift manager eager to assist

staff towards company and personal goals while completing all

managerial duties in a timely manner.

Experience

Supercuts - Cosmetologist
iVesf Lebanon, NH
01/2009 - Current

•  Multitasked and prioritized in a fast-paced work environment
•  Engaged positively with clients to deliver memorable customer

experiences that resulted in repeat business.
•  Assisted customers with identifying product essentials to meet

individual needs, fostering positive relationships with excellent
communication for repeat business.

•  Backed up reception desk by answering phones, scheduling
appointrnents and processing payments.

•  Handled cash and credit card payments daily with consistent
accuracy.

«  Performed scheduled inventory counts and supply audits.
•  Createdjand optimized employee schedules for shift coverage.
•  Prioritized and organized tasks to efficiently accomplish service

goals. I
• Worked,successfully with diverse group of coworkers to

accomplish goals and address issues related to our products
and services.

• Worked |closely with team members to deliver project
requirements, develop solutions and meet deadlines.

Refei-enccs

(Available upon request.]



Beth Daniels

To: ■

Subject
eth Daniels

Agmnj
Energy Service Intake

good fit for that particular position. Heather stated she might
Good evening maam,

> Michaela was at SCS as a dispatcher, however, was not a _
be a better fit for this position. Michaela is able to meet with you at your convenience and can start soon after. She is bi
lingual (German and English) She is very eager to find longevity!

Location: Clarembnt NH

Education GED - Depart of Corrections Cert for Officer, LNA/CNA FL and has a Federal clearance level G5

Transportation : Has own vehicle ,

Work History

06/22 - 07/22 South Western Community Services
Dispatcher - dispatcher truck, phone work and customer service

RFl; Terminated-not a right fit ^

12/21 - Current Edfinancial Services ,

Student Loan Officer • working with federal computer programs, verification of aid being given, talking
to customers about finical health for loans, made over 140 calls a day (both inbound and out going) time management is
a must here

- RFL Will give two week notice

05/19 -12/21 NHHEAF

CSR - worked with student loans, worked with federal computer systems, made appointments with
ustomers for loan aid, completed transactions over the phone for state loans, tracking and document control

RFL: Termed ■ Low • This facility called Edfinancial Services asking for them to hire her on

08/18 - 05/19 Department of Corrections
Correctional Officer - care, custody and control of Inmates, in processing of inmates and out processing,

care and control of personal belonging of inmates, getting jihmates to and from courts
RFL: Voluntary Resignation with notice - had surgery at the time need 3-6 months of recovery

11/14 - 08/18 Charlotte Sherifs Department
Detention Intake Clerk - completing fingerprints and preps documents for inmates, build/maintain and

pdate records, interpreted/ updated bailiff sheets/court orders, used NCiC/FCIC computer programs
RFL: Voluntary Resignation with notice • rnoved to NH

Travis Dennison f Staffing Specialist

(image003.jpg]https;//urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-
3A_TPIstaffing.net&d=OwlGaQ&c=euGZstcaTOIIvimEN8b'7jXrwqOf-
vSA_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=Plcmvl5iveLgVAasu9S2eXKpqFh,p'l^FIFAHUBFrfC4&m=6AwNciuUByNOOtjXSLT638SlzTQ3wEntzi
RqUKuEos&s=Q0IFt_W5qyGKbaJkUAdioJTv9ciB2„NsDen8vfyl8Vs&C8



SHANNA R MOODY

Professional administrative assistant with 30 years experience In a variety of office settings. Committed
to excellent customer service both internally and externally. Highly organized and dedicated to growth of
my skill set. Prepared to leverage past work experience for the growth and development of a new
position.

SKILLS

Office Management/Organization

Scheduling - Personal/Clinical

Teaching/Training and Public Speaking

Basic Bookkeeping - Payables/Receivables, etc.

Dally Operations Management

Leadership - One to One/Team

EXPERIENCE

MARCH 2011-PRESENT

FOUNDER/DIRECTOR, SHINING SUCCESS
Program development, fundraising, partnerships

Create/Nurture Community Partnerships

•Data/Record Keeping

Grant Writing and Research

Event Planning

Social Media Management

Website Development

management and day to day function of organization

APRIL 2013-PRESENT

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT, LIFE FELLOWSHIP FOURSQUARE CHURCH

Provide administrative support and daily operations management for Senior Pastor and church
leadership team

April 2013-August2015

CLIENT SERVICES REPRESENTATIVE, ME/jiLS ON WHEELS
Responsible for interviewing and assessing client need, Update/file and keep accurate record of all
client benefits, compliance and services received

September 2012 - April 2013

RECEPTIONIST/ESTHETICIAN, STRONG HOUSE SPA

Receptionist duties for multi-faceted day spa and direct client services

Past Experience also includes medical offices and spas handling doctor and office schedules,

following procedure/protocol, processing insurance claims, direct client services and team

management. All positions requiring high levels of confidentiality and professionalism.



EDUCATION

NORTH COUNTRY SENIOR UNIFIED - NEWPORT, yj 1990

A.S.BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION, NORTH

REFERENCRS

Pastor David Grasso - Senior Pasi

ERN VERMONT UNIVERSITY-LYNDON 1993

Life Fellowship Foursquare Church
/

Tamara Golden - Leadership, Life Fellowship Foursquare Church

Liza McSwaIn - Board Member, Shining Success



Angela Pomasko

Dietary Aide/ Asslstarit Cook

L"? "counting. han« on bulWIng, customer support, order
RedLt, tl^n ,!!! ̂  U? ° «^l«/sales. Highly self motivated and goal oriented
hllds^ brdm^Sf h? L""" *""" '••""■'"Of'n-- <nowledge with factory operator responsibilitiestt ^ 1CU^ ri bhUecanndln,. ijookln, to become a team member wlthl7. companyto use my current knowietlge. Hopeful for new growth and learning new skills to broaden opportunities.

Work Experience

Dietary Aide/Cook
Maplewood Senior Uvln^ • Westmoreland, nh
December 2019 to Present

Assistant cook
Dietary Aide
Housekeeping
Assisted Living organlrer >

Lead Assembler/Expediter
Whitney Brothers Inc -.Xeene. NH
2018 to Present

Wood manufacturing
Machine operator '
Furniture Assembly
Order Progression
Data Entry
Blue print processing
Hardware Expediter
Customer Order Fulfillment
Packaglr>g
Time Management ■
Constructfon/buiiding knowledge
Over,looking assembly of furniture

Operator
Telcflex.Jaffrcy.NH ;
2017 to 2018

•, ' .
Medical tubing line operator
Microscope use
Packaging ^



Data En(ry
Quality Inspection
Production Orders - Start to flnlsh
Time Management
Met production deadlir>es

Individual Job completion

Trade's Community Farm • Fitzwilllam. NH
2016 to 2016

Harvester

Organized CPA baskets

Picked produce for daily share baskets
Organized locadon of produce
Collaboration with fellow harvesters
Fuirilled»,orders fbr Commercial companies

Staff Accountant
McNamara Design • Walpolc. NH
2013 to 2014

Handled all Office expenses and Payroll
Prepare financial statements
Invoicing
Bank Reconciliation

Excellent Interpersonal skills
Customer Service Support
Data Entry
Answering Phones
Filing Faxes, emails, etc.

Provided executive level administrative support

Accounting Assistant
Entergy • Bratileborc. VT

2010 to 2011

Meet demanding deadlines

Prepare finandal statements
Excellent Interpersonal skills
Receive, sort & disburse mall/packages
Bank reconciliation
Billing & collections

Invoicing

Accounts Receivable / Payable
Entry of all Journal and general ledger entries
Assist with month end closing
Scheduling for upper management
Answering Phones

Provided executive level administrative support
^Filing Faxes, emails, ea.



Custorrtor Service Support
Data Entry
Schedule meetlrtgs. events, ect
Collaborate with department leaders on weekly postings
Office Assistant / Payroll Specialist
C&s Wholesale Grocers. Inc - Brattleboro VT
2008 to 2009

^  """'Sement to focllltot. com control
Payroll processing
Union Payroll
Insurance & Investment deductions
Check printing
Time card / clock verification
Vacation & earn time processlr^g
Review revenue and expense accounts
Bank reconciliation

Billing St collections

Prepare daily schedules
J Scheduling for upper management
Accounts Receivable / Payable
Entry of all journal and general ledger entries
Assist with month end closing
Coordinate audit activities
Schedule meetings, events, ect
Prepare daily/monthly agendas
Travel coordinator

Electronic billing
lmpiefT>tnt procedures for joint accounting systems
Hands-on experience in billing, weekly payroll, and taxes
Worked with supervisors to ensure timely and accurate payroll and accounting

Internal Expediter / Accounting Assistant
Findings Incorporated • Keene, nh
2008 to 2008

Process monthly expense reports reflecting supporting documents
Collaborate with department leaders on weekly postings'for master reports
Accurate and timely writing, editing, and preparation
Assist with capital purchases, sales, direct vendor relations
Meet demanding deadlines
Provided executive level administrative support
Responsible for accounting activities
Ensure completion and review of ail balance sheet reconciliations
identify and communicate findings of general ledger and balance sheet
Work with internal and external auditors during reviews and audits
Excellent Interpersonal skills
Accounts Receivable/Payable



Data Entry
Customer Service Support

Education

Bachelors Degree in Accounting
Phoenix University
2009 to 2014

Associates Certificate In Accounting
Wver Valley Technical College • Kcene. NH
2004 to 3008

Diploma
fall Mountain Regional High School • Langdon NH
2000 to 2003

Skills

• Windows 2000-f

MoWuSr^""'' Access, Publisher. Money
Outlook Express
Lawson
Oracle
Crystal Reports
QuickSooks PRO

• Account Reconciliation

• Financial Staternent Preparation

• General Ledger Accounting
• Balance Sheet Reconciliation

• Bank Reconciliation



Beth Daniels

To:

Subject:
Beth Daniels

^^St^^^'Bu^^Ciaremont candidate • Submrttai

inal Messa

Heather & Terra,

I have other candidates who have expressed Interest In working for Southwestern Community Services, and I wanted to
.send along this candidate's bio In the event you have a future need at your Claremont location.

AngeliM is currently working at Mascoma Bank in Windsor but is actively seeking a position (outside of banking!) in
Claremont. She presents herself well. Was early for her interview, came in dressed in business casual attire, and could
make eye contact and hold,a conversation! She has been in banking for the last 2+ years but is feeling like it Is not the
right fit for her She has experience being the 1st point of contact for all customers via phone or in-person, and she
interacts dally with community members of all demographics. She prides herself In her ability to keep things confidential
and tells me she can talk and chitchat with anyone! Angelica has a clear background check, no physical limitations, can
pass a drug test, and is available to Interview Imnrtedlately'

Residence: Claremont, NH

Education: H^h School Diploma
Transportation: Has own reliable vehicle

I

4/24-Present '

Mascoma Bank

Bank Teller

RPL Still there - looking for an opportunity closer to home

5/22-4/24

NH Community Federal Credit Union
Bank Teller

RFL: Voluntarily Resigned with notice - Accepted position at Mascoma Bank for growth potential

11/21-4/22
Holiday Inn

Front Desk Clerk

RFL: Voluntarily Resigned - Accepted position at NHCFCU

Amber Farnham | Director, Recruiting Quality



Elizabeth 3eth) Butler

Skills Summary

•Accustomed to working in a fast paced, often stressful environment.

•Expert at customer service and relationship building.

•Fast arid accurate word processing/data entry skills.

•A multi-tasker; willing to assist with whatever tasks are needed.

• Empatheticand understanding.

• Able to interact with a diverse client base.

• A quick learner: adapt easily to new systems and

changes.

Proficient in Microsoft Office, MUNJ5, Google Workspace, AssetWorx, RecOesk, Outlook and Social Media Platforms

Professional Highlights

City of Keene, New Hampshire, Keene, nh (January 2017 - February 2023)

Account aerk/Admlnlslrative Assistant, Finance Department (March 2020 - February 2023)
•Assisted with weekly payroll process for 400+ employees. Processed complete payroll run in absence of payroll administrator.
•Performed various accounting duties such as dally cash reports, weekly payroll reports, journal entries, bank ACH transfers.
•Assisted with Accounts Payable as needed.

• Posted daily batch receipts to MUNIS system,

• Reconciled donation accounts monthly: posted restitution payments.
•Maintained files for fixed asset reporting. ■ 1

Administrative Assistant, Parks, Recreation and Cemeteries Department (January 2017-March 2020)
•Provided support for Superintendent of Parks/Recreation and Superintendent of Cemeteries, and Director of Facilities
•Assisted Director with grant writing. ■ j
♦Assisted clients—in person and over the phone—with a variety of inquiries ranging from parks, playgrounds and after
school programs to pickteball games. |

•Maintained City of Keene cemetery database; entered all lot sales and interments, coordinated funeral services with staff,
funeral homes and private citizens. j

•Entered accounts payable batches into city-wide fi nance management system; reconciled daily cash.

Court Street Veterinary Hospital, Keene, nh (Apni 2007- juiy 20i4)
Receptionist/Administrative Assistant
•Scheduled wellness and surgical appointments. Greeted ail clients and pets at the reception desk, answered busy, multi-line
telephone. Scheduled routine and surgery appointments. |

• Documented all patient charts; corrected Invoicing errors; peHormed special projects for office manager.
•Triaged emergency calls, determined severity of situation and advised clients accordingly,
•Assisted with small animal handling when needed; filled prescriptions.
•Managed all delinquent accounts from time of delinquency to court proceedings if warranted.

I  f
Monadnock Habitat for Humanity, Keene, NH (part time, November 2015 - October 2019)
Administrative Assistant/Bookkeeper
•Posted accounts receivable and processed accounts payable in QuickBooks.
•Managed donor database, prepared mail merge letters and bulk mailings.
•Attended board meetings, created and distributed minutes.

Education

Smith jCollege
Northampton, Massachusetts

Bachelor of Arts, English



Elizab^h butler
- References

Andy Bohannon, Director ^
City of Keene

Parki, Recreation, Facilities, and

Cemeteries

312 Washington Street

Keene, NH 03431

Chuck Sweeney Superintendent
City of Keene j
Parks and Cemeteries

I

312 Washington Street

Keene. NH 03431

Shirley Rrghter and

Dr. Richard Righter, DVM

Karen Gray, Senior Aaountant

City of Keene

Finance Department

3 Washington Street

Keene, NH 03431

Additionat Professional and Personal References Available



PROFESSIONAL

SUMMARY

WORK HISTORY

Sydney Santor

O Organized and depenc
with a positive attitude,

team goals.

-SKILLS O ■ •• Data Entry

Group and Individual Instruction

able candidate successful at managing multiple priorities
Willingness to take on added responsibilities to meet

0
1

Compassionate Communication

Community Outreach Programs

05/2021 to CURRENTENERGY SERVICES INTAKE TECHNICIAN

Southwestern Community Services | Claremont, NH
•  Answered phone calls and provided new clients with the required papenvork

to initiate service.

• Offered compassionate and attentive guidance to clients during moments of
crisis and trauma)

•  Completed intakej and reviewed.
•  Explair^ eligibility requirements and application details.
• Attended case reviews and provided feedback on client progress.
• Assisted clients with completion of applications and paperwork. . .
•  Scheduled appoiijitments with applicants to gather information and explain

benefits processes.

• Worked closely with EAP program.

O team leader

U8AR I Rutland. VT

•  Established open

09/2011 to 04/2023

and professional relationships with team members to

achieve quick resolutions for various issues. -
IReviewed, impleryented. and updated company records related to team

activities for future reference.

Monitored team performance and provided constructive feedback to

increase productivity and maintain quality standards.

C 12/2020 to 03/2021j PERIOPERATIVE TECHNICIAN

Dartmouth-Hitchcock'Medical Center | Hanover. NH
•  Transported patients from their rooms to the OR.

•  Educated patients about procedures, answered questions, and provided
comforting words to control anxiety and enhance procedure results.

• Operated and ma ntained medical equipment used to diagnose and treat
patients.

•  Cleaned and sterilized instruments, equipment, and surfaces.



12/2018 to 04/2019O HOUSEKEEPER

Mt Ascutney Resort

.  • Vacuumed rugs and carpeted areas in offices, lobbies, and corridors.
•  Disinfected and mopped bathrooms to keep facilities sanitary and clean.'
•  Engaged with guests on room requirements and amenities to promote

overall satisfaction.

•  Cleaned and stocked guest rooms by replacing used towels and linens
vacuuming floorsj making beds, and restocking bathroom items.

•  Used chemicals by following safety protocols and procedures to avoid burns
and injuries.

•  Verified cleanliness and organization of storage areas and carts.
•  Adhered to professional house cleaning checklist.

O CASHIER 08/2017 to 10/2020
BImey's Convenience Store | Claremont. NH

•  Greeted customers entering store and responded promptly to customer
needs.

•  Restocked and organized merchandise in front lanes.

• Operated cash register for cash, check, and credit card transactions with
excellent accurac} levels.

•  Helped customers complete purchases, locate items, and join reward
programs.

•  Addressed customer needs and made product recommendations to increase

sales.

• Worked flexible schedule and extra shifts to meet business needs.

•  Built relationships with customers to encourage repeat business.
•  Counted money in cash drawers at beginning and end of shifts to maintain

accuracy. '

•  Stocked, tagged and displayed merchandise as required.

EDUCATION O High School Diploma

I  Brattleboro Union Highschool, Brattlet>oro, VT
2012
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSIONER

JaredS. Chlcoine

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

Chffstopher J. Ellms, Jr.

A8

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. FnjtSt Suite 10...
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

TDOA£ce»s:R«tayNH
1-800-735-2964

Tel. (603) 271-3670

FAX No. 271-1526

Website:'

wwfw.energy Jih.gov

August 7,2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Enirgy (Department) tO enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Southwestem Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH, Vendor
#177511, by increasing the price limitation by $235,669 from $4,355,988 to $4,591,657 using
additional Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds made available through
the Infiustructure Investment and Jobs Act (lUA) and from remaining regular program year funds,
both from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30,2025.
There is no time extension being requested for this contract. The original contract was approved by
Governor and Executive Council on September 20,2023, Item #89. 100% Federal Funds

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energy. Fuel Assistance

02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

Pr'2025

$235,669

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE because the historical perfoimance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, and the synergies that benefit the
FAP as a result of foe five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federal assistance
programs as well as the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver LIHEAP (also known as Fuel
Assistance Program or FAP) services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the
five CAAs who have successfully provide FAP services at the local level for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's FAP Administrator in the implementation of
foe program.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Councij
August 7,2024
Page 2 of2

This ̂ endment adds additionaJ funding which was received for Program Year 24 (PY2ff) to existing
contracts and makes them available to the Community Action Agencies until the contract.ends on
September 30,2025, making them available for the next winter heating season. Demand and benefit
amounts have varied across the CAAs and these ̂ endments seek to position these additional funds
to the CAAs that have experienced the most neec.

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this contract.

Respectfully submitted.

Jared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



KEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

SOUTHWESTERN COIvIMUNITY SERVICES,TNC
I  j "

AMENDMENT

This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Memmack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
"Slate") and Southwestern Community Services, Inc., 63 Community Way, PC Box 603, Keenc,
Cheshire County, NH 03431 (hereinafter the "(jontractor"). •

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter rjeferred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 20,2023, |ltem #89, the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approved of such modification or amendnient by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the Slate and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects.

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein^ the parties agree to the following:

1) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follo\vs:

A) Price Limitat

B)

C)

D)

ion; Amend Subparagra^di 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of 84,355,988 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
ofS4,59l.657.

Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $4,355,988 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of $4,591,657.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$294,638 and inserting for administrative costs $316,060.

Amend Exhibit C, secont

$3,917,550 and inserting

2)

paragraph by striking the current sum of
for program costs $4,131,797.

Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder

Grants: 240INHL1E1; Award Date: 10/23/23
and 2401NHLIBA; Award Date: 04/22/24 Contractor Initials:

CFDA: 93.368

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

. fiP

Page \ of2



shall remain in full forc« and effect in accordance with the terms end conditions

itx forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the ̂ es have
written below.

Date:

hereunto set their hands as of the day and year

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
NH Department of Energy.

Jdred S. Chicoine. Commissioner

Southwestern Community Services. Inc

By: ''^dh ICBQ
(N^e & Title of Person Authorized to Sign)

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

Lfficeofth RNEY GENERAL

Date:
7/18/2024

By
Assistant Attorney General

1 hereby certify that the foregoing contract vw ap^ve^ly Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on .2024.

SECRETARY OF STATEOFFICE

Title:

Orano; 2401NHUE1; Award Dale: 10/23/23
and 240INHLIEA; Award Date: 04/22/24

CFDA: 93.368

Southwestern Coomunity Services, Inc.

SEGR F STATE

Contractor Initials:

Date

BD
:2SSZZS
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State of New Hampshire

Departir

CER

ent of State

IFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY

SERVICES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Harnpshirc on May 19.1965.

( further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

\  Business ID: 6SS14

Certificate Numt^r: 0006663003

Gf.

%

o

A
a:

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



RCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATC (UiMMVinrYY)

12/19/2023 '

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AN

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXT
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

D CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

END OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(lea) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provielona or be endoned.
ff SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, aubject to the tarma and conditions of the ̂ cy. certain pollclea may require an endowment A atatement on
this certificate does not confer rlghta to tha certificate holder In Ueuofau'chendoreementla).

PROoucea

The Hitb Group New England. LLC

PO Bex 606

Keene NH 03431

^ O'Oonneil, CPIvr. CIC >

PHOHS f877)352-2l2l 1^**[jUCM«.r.i»i hwC.Hoi:
eodonneHQhilbgroup-eom

iNSURCRrsi ASFORoiNO covsiuoe NAK •

INSURER A: Philadelphia indemnity Insurance Co 18058

iNtuaeo

Southwestern Community Services inc.

S3 Community Way

PO6OX603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER e: Dranite State Healthcare & Human Sarvicet Tn^t

INSURER C:

INSURER O:

INSURER e:

INSURER r:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24/23 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWTTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERnFlCATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY 1HEPOUOES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
iNsn
VTR TYPE OF INSURANCE rmOi] POUCYNUHatR - UMtrs

A

X COMMERCIAL OElVIRAL UABIUTY

«  OCCUR

PHPK2838318 Ot/OI/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE • ll '-000.000
1 CLARkS-UAO

01/01/2025

, 100.000

1.C0 EXP (Am on* osnonl , 5.000

PERSONAL A ACW iKTURV
, 1,000.000

1 OEKVAOOREOATE LIMIT AmiftS PER: QENERALAOORSOATE , 2,000.000

X POLICY Sect LJ loc
OT»«R:

PRODUCTS-COUPlOP AGO 1, 2,000.000
Professionsi Liability t 1m/2m

A

1 AUTOiaoeiLE UAaUTY

PHPK2838315 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

COMBtNEO SINGLE LllWT S 1,000.000

X ANY AUTO

IHEOULEO
IT08
INOWNEO
rrOSONLY

eoonv INJURY (Psr esrsan) s

OWNED
AUTOS 0>«.y
HIREO
AUTOS ONLY "

1^J AL
eOOILV INJURY (Psr sccMsnt) s

—

Inc
TAL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Pn scdasnil - s

1  • 1

A

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIUS-MAOe
PKUM93672 01/01/2024 01/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
^ 2.000.000

AGGRSQATE
, 2.000.000

OeO 1 XI RETENTION 1 '0-000 1 %

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOVERr UAOILrTY

Atft PROPWnORAWRTNERFgXECUnVt rTD
OFFiCEArhCweEREXCLUDEOT 1
(MMOMorr In NHJ "—'
H««l. XaAeMaMMv

OCSCRIPnON OP OPERATIONS DPOw

HIA HCKS20242000036 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

w PER 1 1 OTH-.
^ STATUTE 1 I ER

EX. EACH ACCIDENT
, 1.000.000

EL. DISEASE • EA EIAPLOYEE , 1.000.000

EL. DISEaSS • POLICY LIMT , 1.000.000

MSCRIPTKM or 0PERAT10HS/ LOCATtONS/ VEHICLES (ACOAO 101. AMIOenN RwMrti Sehrdu

3a Stale: NH. /Ml offlcefs included. TNs certificate is issued as a matter of information e

does not amend, extend or alter the coverage aSorded by the policies referenced here

I*. n«y »• mucAM X mart tptet Is rsqulrse)

inly end confers no rights upon the certificate holder. TNs certinceta
in.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Sute of N«w Hinipshirt

Dtptrtment of Energy

21 South Fruh Si. Ste 10

ConcorO NH 03301

SKOULO ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICiES BE CANCELlCD BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHONUEO KEPRESCNTATIVe

ACORO 29 (2016/03)

I  ei9S6-201SACORDCORPORATION. AllrtghttreMrved.
The ACORD name and logo are reglatered marka of ACORO



STATH OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSIONER

Jar«d S. Chicolne

DEPUPT COMMISSIONER

Christopher J. Qbns, Jr.

OSEP05'23Pn 2^11
1-600-735-2964

4

81
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. FoASL, Suite 10
Concord. N.H. 03301-2429 '

Tei. (603) 271-3670

FAX No. 271-1526

Website:^
www.energy.nK.gov

September 20, 2023

His Excellency, OovemoT Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract with Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (VC#177511), Kecne, NH, in
the amount of $4,355,988 for the Fuel Assistan'ce Program effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval through September 30,2025. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account in FY 2024 iqxm the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

NH Department of Enerav. Fuel Assistance

02-52-52-520510-33540000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

FY2024

$4,355,988

2) Further request authorization to advance Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
$443,317 from the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Alssistancc Program (PAP), their outreach and
client service capabilities, the synergies that benefit the FA? as a result of the five statewide
CAAs' implementation of several other federal | assistance programs, and the infiastructure'that is
already in place to deliver FAP services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract
with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than
three decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's FAP Administrator in the
implementation of the program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified
New Hampshire families, including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are



His Exodkncy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council

Septemba 20,2023
Pase2of2

targeted to low income households with high CTcrgy burdens. The current maximum income
level is 60% of the State M^ian Ijicome-(SMI), which is $80,069 for a family of four. The
average FAP benefit during the last program yw was $1,530. The progr^ operates on an
October l** to September 30'^' program year.

The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the program between monthly
reimbursements from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no

requested to support this program.
longer available. General Funds will not be

Respectfi>Uy;^bmitted,

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This egrcemcni and aJ) of its aitachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Exwuiive Council for approval. .Any informeiion that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly idcniincd to the agency artd agreed to in writing prior to signing the conmci.

I

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. identificatiox.

I.I State Agency Name ,

Dcpenmeni of Energy

1.2 Slate Agency Address

21 S. Fruit St.. See. 10, Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

63 Community Way, PO Box 603. Keene. NH 03431

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)352.7152

1.6 Account Unit and Class

33540000^)74

l.7Completion Date -
September 30.2025

1.8 Price Limitation

S4.35S.988

1.9 Contracting OfTicec for Slate Agency
Joshua W. Elliott. Director. Policy and Programs Division

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-6003 .

l.ll Contractor Signature |
D.ie: 08/py,33

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor -

Signatory'Beth Daniels, CEO

LJ3 State Agency Sifnahire

1

1.14 Name and Title of Slate Agency Signatory

Jared S. Chlcoine, Commissioner

I.l5/Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration. Di

/ By:
'islon of Personnel f//ppp/ico6/eJ

'Director. On: .

I -16 App^^^^^^^^^y^Gcncral (Form, Substance and Execution) (if eppiicoblr)

On: - 9/1/2023

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (i/apt

O&C Item number:

*licQbte)

C&C Meeting Date:

LIHEAP24 SCS

Award 0 24OINHLIEA

CFOA#93.5d8

Page 1 of4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaic of New
Hampshire, acting through ihcagenc)- idcniUled inhlock I.I ("Stale"),
engages contractor idcntined in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or both,
identified and more ponicularly described in the attached EXHIBIT B
which is incorporated herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
and subject to the opproval of the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this Agreement, and ail
obligations of(he panics hereundcr. shall become effective on the date
the Governor and Executive Council approve this Agreement, unless
no such approval is required, in which case'the Agreement shall
become eftective on the date the Agreement is signed by the State
Agency OS shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date"). |
3.2 If the Contractor commences (he Services prior to the Eflective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the Effective
Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the Comractor, and in the
event that this Agreement docs not become effective, (he State shall
have no liability to the Contractor, including without limitation, any
obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs incurred or ScrN'iccs
performed. / j
3.3 Contractor must complete all Ser>'ices by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Noiwiihsianding any provision of (his Agreement to the contrary, all
- obligations of (he Slate hereundcr. including, without limitation, the
continuance of payments ' hereundcr. ore contingent upon the
availability and continued approprioiion of funds. In no event shall the
State be li;d)le for any payments hereundcr in excess of such available
Qf^ropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the appropriation
or availabilit)' of funding for this Agreement and the Scope for
Services provided in EXHIBIT B. in whole or in pan. the State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available,
if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or terminate the Services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction or terminaiion. The State shall not be required to
transfer funds from any other account or source to the Account
identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account arc reduce^
or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

3.1 The contract price, method of paymcni. and terms of payment arc
identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which is
incorporated herein by reference. j
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary,
ond notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the
loiel of all payments authorized, or actually made hereundcr. exceed
the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The payment by the State
of the contract price shall be (he only and the complete reimbursement
to the Contractor for all expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the
Contractor in the performance hereof, and shall be (he only and the
complete compensation to the Contractor for the Ser\'ices. |
5.3 The Stale reserves the right to offset from ̂ y amounts otherwise
payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those liquidated

amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7 through RSA 80:7-e
or any other pn.>vi.sion of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetar>' damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specidc
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.
6.l ln connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor
shall comply with all appitcahk .statutes, luw.s, rcgulaiiorvs. end orders
of federal, state, county or municipal authorities which Impose any
obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to.
civil rights and equal employment opportunity laws and the
Governor's order on Respect and Civility In the Workplace. Executive
order 2020-01. In addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by
monies of the United States, the Contractor shall comply with all
federal executive orders, rules, regulotions and statutes, and with any
rules. regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue
to implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply with
all applicable intellectual propcny laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment because
of age. sex. sexual orientation, race, color, marital status, physical or
mental disability, religious creed, national origin, gender identity, or
gender expression, and will take afTirmative action to prevent such
discrimination, unless exempt by state or federal law. The Contractor
shiill ensure any subcontractors comply with these nondiscriminaiion
requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
rnade which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks, or
other unlawful or improper means of obtaining busing.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to perm it the State or United States access
to any of the Contractor's books, records and occoums for the purpose
of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and all rules,
regulations and orders pcnoining to the covenants. tcrm.s and
conditions of (his Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contraaor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
nccessao' to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shoH be properly' licensed and otherwise authorized to
do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or any successor,
shall be the State's 'point of contact penalning to this Agreement.
8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of (he
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr ("Event of
Default");

8.1.1 failure to perform the Serx iccs satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereundcr: and/or ,
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of this
Agreement. ^

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take
any one. or more, or all. of the following octions:

Page 2 of4
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(>)

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS • PRImXrV COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarmenl, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters ' Primary Covered Transactions

The prospective primary participant certines^to
principals:

(a)

(b)

the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency:

(c)

have not .within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrxist statutes
or commission of embezzlement, thcfl] forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, /neiigibillty and.
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Pan 76, certifies to the best of its knoNvledge wd belief that it and its principals:

(a) . arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant- is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will Include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion • Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier-covered transactions.

Contractor Representative Signature

^oufhweMi/rn
Contractor's Representative Title

r/< ln< 68/a//M
DateContractor Name

L1HEAP24 SCS

Award ii240INHLIEA

CFOA»il93.568
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G
1

I
CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as idemi Tied in Sections I.I t and l.l2ofthe General Provisions, to execute the following
cenification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

^7^ i^QfUlU y C£C
Contractor Representative Signature

StiUthuu!. tnn Pnminijr)}hj S(/v'i
Cnnmrtnr Namft

Contractor's Representative Title

LIHEAP24 SCS

Award # 2401NHLIEA

CFDA«93.568

Date

P37 E.xhlbiis D thru H

Page 6 of 7
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

t
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

1

I
CERTIFICATION

,  Public Law|l03-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmcnial Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires,
that smoking not be permincd in any portion of any indoor facility rputinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly-for provision of health, day care, education,.or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

i . f-'
The law does not apply to children's services providedjin private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
SI boo per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/ Contractor certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/contractor funher agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all Sub-contractor shall certify accordingly.

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

S'ej\ik.C\,lnt. O^J^l/iS.3
Contractor Name «./ l DateContractor Name

LIHEAP24 SCS

Award # 240INHLIEA

CFDAW3.568

P37 Exhibits D (hni H
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KAP Approvtl loObUgaie

STATE

EXAMPLE ONLY

APPROVAL |T0 OBUOATE
FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16

Exhibit I

TOTAL
ICONTRACTED BUDGET'. :'. .538,220.00 5:646,370.00: 4,582.60 • • .357,200.00;," . 6,646,372.60 :
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED

0.00

0.00

j 0.00
1 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

ITHIS. APPROVAL TO OBUGATE ;., • 0.00 ' ' •; '0.00 • 0.00 .  '0.00; VrJ.: 1.166,65100

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00

538.220.00

1,

4.

165,551.00
^,819.00

0.00

4,582.60

•  0.00

367,200.00

1.165,551.00
5.380,62160

BMCA

First 7/1/201G ADMIN. FAPROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCEie TOTAL

iCONTRACTEO.BUOGET : ". ' ' >95,683.00 .  .1,003.588:00 1,000.00 • 69.960.00 ;• 1170,209.00,'.

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 ■ 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL.TO OBLIGATE . . '  ;o.oo . . ::207,112.00;: - 0.00. 0:00 : . ..••;207;ii2.oo* r:

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO 08UGATE

SNHS

First 7/1/2019

0.00

95.663.00

207,112.00

796,474.00
1

0.00

1.000.00

0.00

69,960.00

207,112.00

963,067.00

ADMIN. FAPROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

ICONTRACTED BUDGET.-- , . 1 163,777.00 1,7.18,162.00 1,000.00 ■ 84;220.00 r • ■\1.967.149;00'^
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00
jTHlS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE. . •• •: 0.00 . 354,678.00' 0.00. -0.00 :.:V' ■ C ' 354,678.00.i 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE ^

0.00
163,777;00

3

.  1,
54,578.00
363,574.00

0.00
1,000.00

0.00
84,220.00

354,578.00
1,612,571.00

SOS
Firsi 7/1/2019 ADMIN. PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

iCONTRACTEDBUDGEn-'.; , . s. . • . e3.835.M ■.879,601:00 825.00 .. 64;960.00;-.. . .^1029.121.00 :,t
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00
0.00

ITHIS ARPROVAL-TO OBLIGATE I. t .. .0.00, 181,504.00 ' 0.00 .. .-. 0;00 V :■ 181604.001«:

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUQATE

CAPSC

0.00
83.835.00

ADMIN.

181.504.00
697.997.00

FA PROGRAM

0.00
825.00

0.00
M,960.00

SEAS ASSURANCE 16

181,504.00
847,617.00

TOTAL

jCONTRACTED BUDGET' • - = V. 54,676.00: 673,693.00 ' . 767.60 •  55,110:00. r. r•C-?.684;136.60i'''i>|
EXPECTED BUDGET .  0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

[THIS, APPROVAL TO.08UGATE V: ^ ;  0.00 . •,118.373.00 : 0:00. . 0.00 -• •«'118,373.00,--|

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118.373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 54,676.00 455,220.00 757.60 55,110.00 565,763.60

TCCA #

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL

iCONTRACTED BUDGET^r • 140;269.00..' >1,47-1538.00. ••• . 1000.00 ■  . . 82,950.00 • : >. •:.1696.757.001r|

EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE .. .0.00 1303,684.00 .= .0.00. •  .0.00 !''303.884;00 S-\
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 |303,984.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 140.269.00 1,167,554.00 1,000.00 82,950.00 1,391.773.00

UHEAP24

CrDAl93.568

P37 Exhibit I
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S30.000 and awarded on or after October I. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of S30.000 or more. If the initial
award is below S30.000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over S30.000.
the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Suboward and Executive Compensation Information'), the
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency

•  4) NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique entity identifier (UEI #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arc from thC'Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than S30M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made. '

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law ! 10-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward^aitd Executive Com^nsaiion Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, es identified in Sections I.I I and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

J^oaiLLq , QcaiUis I
(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

(SouthbMStfrr} tommiinihiStiWCfS/lnt. OEI^iIq^
(Contractor Name) (Date)

L1HEAP24SCS

Award tf 240INHLIEA

CFDA No. 93.568

Exhibit J

Initials



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

^  I '
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identiried in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions, t cenify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

. The UEI number for your entity is: HMUUUSM^JC3,

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed Tiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (I) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative egreements;[and (2) S30.000.000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to iV2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to U2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the e.xecutives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or ) 5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above b YES, stop here

If the answer to 03 above b NO, please answer the following:

organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

/

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:
•

Name: Amount:

LIHEAP 24 SCS

Award 0 24OINHLieA

CFDA No. 93.568

Exhibit i
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State of > ew Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, pivid M. Scanl#n. Sccreiary of Siai« oflf* Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify that SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY
SERVICES. INC. isa New Hampshin: Nonprofii Corporation registered to iransact busincH in New Hampshire on May 19. 1965.
I limhercertify that all fees and documenu required by the Secrctaiy of Slate's onice have been received and is in good standing
as far as this olTtcc is concerned.

Business ID; 65514

Certificaie Number; 0006194065

o

'6̂ 1%
u.

So

A
%

9-

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023.

)

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Kevin Watterson

(Name of the elected Clefk/Secfetaty/Officer of Corporation/LLC)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clertc/Secretary/Officer of Southwestern Community Services Inc
(C

hereby certfy that

orpwation/LLC Name)

2. The fbltowing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly caUed and
June 18 2021 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting

(Date) "

VOTED: That Beth Daniels. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on t>ehalf of Southwestern Community Services Inc.
(Name of Coiporation/ LLC)

to enter Into contracts or agreements with

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has hot been amended or repealed and remains in full force and ef^t as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. .1 further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire wlU rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(8) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation In contracts wHK^ State'tf New Hampshire
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. ' ' fi r

Dated: 8/21/2023

Iture of Elected Officer

Name: Kevin Watterson
Title; Chairperson

Rev. 03/24/20
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AND RELIED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDfTORS' REPORT

Leone, _
McDonnell
& Roberts

CERnOEO HiBUC AOOUKTaNTC

Vl'OLfQiOKO'NOimiCOM.
DOVM • CO?JC(lRn

^TRATIWI•

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Corhrnunity Services. Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Staternents

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements'of financial position as of May-31, 2022, and the
related consolidated statements, of activities, jfunctional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes.to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairiy, in all material respects, the
financial positioh of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and. related compaiiies as of May
31, 2022, and the changes in Its net assets and Its cash flows for the year then ended in

. accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financjal audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the. United Slates. Our
responsibilities under those standards are fuijther described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be Independent
•of Southwestern Community Services, lnc.| and related companies and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements, relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the R nanclal Statements

Managemerit is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted; in the United
States of America,.and for the design, imp|lementation.. and maintenance of internal..control
relevant to'the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements-that are
free frorri material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



tn preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether t.here are
conditiphs or events, 'considered in the aggregate, that raise substahtiai doutjt-;aboui
Southwestern CommunityServices,"Inc. and related companies' ability .to continue as a going
concern within one year after tbe date that the consolidated financial statements are available
to beMssued.

•AuiiUors' ResponslbUities for^the Audit of the Financiat Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable, assurance about whether the consolidated financial
.statements as a whole are free from material rnisstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
.to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of
assurance but Is not absolute assurance arid therefore Is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in-accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Gbyerhment Auditing
Standards will always detect a material rnisstatement when It exists. The risk of not detecting a
material rriiss.tatemerii resulting from fraud is tjlgher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve coHusiori, forgery,. Intentional ornisslons, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. ̂ Misstatements are considered material if there- is a.substantial. likelihood that,
individually of in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasoriabib user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit In accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Goverhmehi Auditing Standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material rnisstatement of the consolidated financial
staterfients, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedilires include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal corptrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bbt not for the, purpose- of
expressing ah opinion on the effectiveness of Southw.estem Community Services. Inc.
and related companies' Internal control) Accordingly,, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the apprpprialeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
Significant accounting estimates nnade|by managerrient, as well as evaluMe the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements-

• Conclude whether, In our judgment, ttjiere are conditions or events, considered Irt the
aggriegate, thai raise substantial doubt atwut Southwestem Community S.ervlces, Inc.
and related companies' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time,

We are required to communicate with those, charged with governance regardirig. arnong other
matters, the planned scope end timing of the audit, significant audit findings; and certain
ilntemal co'ntrolrrelated.imatters that we idenlifed during the audit.



Report on Summarized Com'fiarative lnforrnation

We have previously au'dited Southvyestem. Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2021 financi.ai Statements, and vve expressed an unmodified audit opinion on .those audited
financial statemerits In our report date.d October 22. 2021. In our opinion, the. .summarized
comparatiyd'information'presented herein as of and for the year .ended May .31, 2021, is
consistent, ioall material respects, with the audited financial statementsfroni which it has been
derived.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion, on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2. U.S. Code of Federal ̂ Regulations Part. 200. Uniform Administretive
Requirernents, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of •additibrial analysis .and "is not|a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such Information is the responsibility of mariagemerit and was derived .from and
relates -directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to .prepare Ih.e
consolidated financial statements, The information has been subjected to the. auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial Matements and certain additional
procedures, iriduding- comparing and reconciling such iriformation directly to .the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statemerits or to the
consolidated financial-statements themselves,' arid other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted ip the United States of America. In bur oplnipri. the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly slate.d. in all material respects, in relatibn to
the consoljdated financiaC statements as a whole. ^

Other .Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Gpyernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
Febmary 9. 2023, oh- our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s Internal
confrol over financial reporting and on-our tests of its compliance with certain proyislpns of
laws, regulalionis. contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpo.se of that
report- is solejy to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and, the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion ort the
effectiveness' of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal contrbl over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral, part of an audit performed iri accordance
with Go^rnment Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community Services,- Inc.'s
internal, control over finanblal reporting and compliance.

Wolfebofo, New Hampshire
February 9. 2623



SQUTHWgSTgRH COMMUNITV-SgRV CES. mC. AND RELATED COMPAMIES

■CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MAY 31.2Q'22 AND 2031

I
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accocinls recelvaj9le..net
Prepaid expanses

Total'currerit asseU.

PROPERTY
Land and buildings
Vohides and eqiA^mont
Furniture and fixtures

Total property'

Less eccumulaled depredation

Property, net

OTNER ASSETS
Investment in reiaied paHies
Duo frDm.releted parties
Cash escrow arjd feserve funds
Security disposils.
Other assets

Total .other assets

Total assets

HABIUTIES A

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Acoounb payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and pay^ taxes
Olher current llabOities-
Refundable advances
Current portion of Ecortomlq Injury Disaster Loan
Cu^nt portion of long term debt'

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt, liess current portion shown above
Econornlc Injury Disaster Loen, less current port^ shown above

Total noncurrent jlaUlilles

Total llabiljUos

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrtdions

Tdtal.tiei.essets

Total liabiyoes and net aasetr

ND NET ASSETS

'See Notes to GonsoilcMed Rnanc|at Statemcrtts

4

2022

S  3.1S3.976
1.745.95i2'

243.980

5.143.918

29.8S9.13E
5S5.SS4

31.372,762

15:527.4S3

15.645.279

94.230
47,566

1.479.277
111,033

1.732.490

S 22.721.687

S 22.721.687

2021

/

S  1.722.041
1.783,993

•  62.628

3569.562

26.549;202
565:380
934 441

30.049.023.

14.621.952

' 15:427.071

138.001
55,138

1.471.741
105.7TO

2M'

^.771.054

S 20.787.687

S  208,035 S  240.586
229.110 176.074
353.788 244.003
158.972 148.654

1.519.622 729.955
'3.5« .

159.974 142.174

2,633,084 1.675.646

n.243.212 10.911;627
146.415 150,000

.  11.389.627 11.061.627

.14.022.711 12.737.273.

8.564.624 7.815.065.
134.352 215.349

S.698.976: 8.030.414'

t . 20.767.687



SQUTrtWESTgRN CQMMUNTTY.SERVICES. INC. AND REIJVTED CQMPANtgS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OP ACTIViTIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31.2022
^WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATME INFORMATION

$•« Notes 10 Coniolldeted Financial Siatemants

S

Without Donor.

RectHciioni *
With Donor

Reatrictlon*
2022

Tptal

2021

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Govemmont coiniTacts
Program service-fm
Rental income

Support
Sponsorship
Immest Income <

Forgiveness or tebt

Miscellaneous
IrFklrtd coniiibutens

S 24.SS3.S74.
2.d9l;407

1.817.636

•  610.247

26.520
•1.099
00.600

1S6.9S4
69.366

S

56.926

S 24.553,574
•2.991,407 .
1.817,638
869.175

.28.520
1.099

-.00.600

-156.954.
■69.366

S 14,451.497
2.708.902
1,857.741

601,838
21.703

1.402
516:501
239.096
65.414

Tola! i^enuas end otner support X.339.412 68.928 30.398.340 20.265,894

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS 139.92S (T39.925)

•

Totel revenues. Other support, end
net assets release from restrictions ■  -30.479.337 (80.9971 30.398.340 20285 694

EXPENSES
Program services'

Home ertergy programs
Education end nutrition
Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic developmer\t scnrlces
Other programs

7.051.760
2.826.493

13.340.415
3.070.446

658.791
683.000

7.051.7W
2.626.493

13.349.415
3.070.448

658.791
663.000

S.S59.497
2.629.099
-5,516,502
2.913.953

621,784
750.430

Toialprogram services 27,639.905
j

27.639.905 17:991.265

•Supporting activities
Msnagcmeni and general 2.031.266 2.031.266 1.948.672

Total expenses 29.67.1.171 29,671,171 19.939.937

CHANGE'IN NET ASSETS BEFORE
LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY 808,166 (80.997) 727,169 325.957

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY (14.836) • (14,636) •

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN LIMtTED PARTNERSHIPS 143.7711' . (43.771) (60.8971

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 749,559 (80,997) 668.562 265.060

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OP YEAR 7.815.085 215.349 8.030.4H 4,911.109

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

1

k 2.854.245

NET ASSETS, END.OP. YEAR -S .6.564.624 $  T34.352 5 8.696.976 S- 8.030.414-



BQimwygamtM coMmiwTY agwv>eg« twe ano RgiATtD CQtiT»AwiEs

CON»OUOATCO STAnKCm OF fUNCTKMAL eXPEMSES

row THE YEAK EW060 MAY ai MM

P«r««
PailJl tWMS

Mnettk

Waufffloni

AMtM«g

B«f*(Fwg^
Canvitiwcesi
ConrttMl
OtpfKittlen
OuM»«giab«ifan
OugAcsting
iruunne*

intartH

btaOv trxt confarane*
iilacaffnaua wpanw.

Ubctftanaous Uias

EovtoaM pwrdwtas
0(Ae« aspanaa

~r^sue*
PiiAaiAwiial *•••

SM Acvalpptneni ano vaaane
SiMsenpoona

Tivral

Ra<a

Soaca testa
Ona dent aaristsnoa
>n-^axpaeaai

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEfOWe
MANAQEKCNT ANO OCNEWAL ALLOCATION.

Aloaacn q< WMwagamant ane geiaul eJ4>anaai

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

GducAOon Economic Minagamam

HomaEnargy and Hamataai Housing OavateonMnt OOiar '  Total and 2922

Proorama MwHtlen Prearama »r«i*9n Santcaa Praofvma Prwm Canaral Total

S  531.449 9  t.333.713 I  801.489 *  67^177 S  340.079 S  418324 1 4.135.811 (  858.748- S 4.092359

' 43.132 127,357 49.840 3I.34« 30.490 35345 340.122 68.379 408.501

>37.344 387.109 140.322 217.837 27,775 137,184 1.047,571 101.743 1.149.314

31.440 •3.878 32.887 49.044 18,083 18580 243.710 68.394 310.384

1,088 12.373 428 7.537 8.801 . •30.405 5.129 35.525
33 . 683 4.690 • . 5.348 9.701 15.049

307 15.734 I3J10 8.001 14.818 . 82.190 • 127.747 179.948

m.973 13.238 87.421 28.033 - 35.197 992382 83.330 1.058.212

28.438 134.038 874.508 . 3310 838.790 150.983 989.773 -

2.339 490 SOS 125 3.682 11,739 15401

8.880 - - - 8380 .5.503' 14.163

6.123 18.820 33.878 82.100 19.659 7.313 147.899 45.537 191738

423 0.336 48.822 . 278 59.059 118.506 177.583
- 334 3.255 832 2382 7303 1.838 8,939

870 2.917 120 11i217 6.388 5102 127.414 30.814 158.228
- - 129.978 - 129.976 ISO 130.128

14.730 3.421 5.378 . 310 24.048 720 24.788
43.201 8.735 22.754 10.409 3.513 00 88702 24.071- 112.773

190 78 74 171 . 706 31927 14.773

1.073 . 4.323 25.930 . 220 32348 85,753 118.301'

1.888 2.887 823 3.093 171 1385 10.289 8.781 -  19.040

. 228 . . 228 180 400

5,147 3.727 21,870 19.709 1.930 I3S8 53.451 46394 100.075

4,713 18.839 11,138 14,784 28.330 240 78395 1.428 n.S23

9.433 2,099 24.563 79.216 11081 128.374 1.420 129.794

8,000 18.300 . '24393 . 4830S - 48395
31,837 203.132 438.408 888.317 ia.747 25 1.689.481 184.162 1.751823

3.338.823 212.848 11.724.070 11.007 37.340 1053 17.327.843 . 17.327.043
80 368 - 89388 • 89.386

7.031,780 3J28.403 13.349.413 3.070.446 658.7«l 681000 27.S39.«S 2331386 20.671.771

318.336 207.720 •81.033 223348 48.418 /  S0.194 2.031.268 12.031.268) .

% 7.S8B.096 t 3.034.213 8 14.330.488 5 3.296.094 , 3 707.208 S  731194 5 29,871.171 S 5 20.071.171

Saa Notts to CoAsofldatad nnanctal Stataataraa

t
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consolioattd fTATtHEin' or RmcnoKAL exPENSES

row THg YTAR gWQgP MAY at. «ni

HMl

En^MyM banafta
Reftwiwa
AjtUXno
BwAcnaon
Cc)(«pu(» coal
Ccmmial

DaptadMen
OuoMottaaden
Oi«aeaaAQ
Muanea

UaeWig and cooteraneo
ibbsaOanaotfa aapanM

gqu»rnant putcftataa
Oneoazpwwa
Peaaea
Pteiasalonai laaa

So* aavatapmam am

Subsolpdons

Tta««

vcNoa

Rm

Spoeaeoat*
Ofcao <Atw aadtaoca

iA-*M aspanaaa

TOTAL nmcnoHAL EXPENSES ecrowe

CEmERAL ANO HANACEXEHT MJ-OCATTOM

AteoSen of manaoemant and penan* Kpenaaa

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES •

Education Eeonoffile Managtmani

Hoota Enargy and iiewaitaa Uorttng DaialdpMaM Othaf ratal and 2021

Pranrama .MutHIIrm BarrtCM' SanOeaa PfOOfS*4 Pioeram andOanafH. Tetrt

ft 488.387 ft 1.518.514 5  491.084 5  725.103 5  350.043 5  430.136 5 4,011,067 ft 752.116 ft 4.783L103

75.674 106.568 37.005 43.514 30.248 33.034 37^033 130.497 . 390:530

171.370 381.908 144.239 283.870 55.553 100.793 1,197.703 46;S08 1.244.311

3Z004 85.770 24.671 S7J08 20.760 14.338 339.357 06.965 306:323.

'3.100 388 1.295 1.038 6.410 133 6.552

10 . 1.130 4.109 11 &360 0.766 14.029

33ft 20.110 12.091 7.765 10.171 64,322 183.133 247.454

1007.401 *12.804 42.954 01,431 680 40.737 1.174.007 50,510 1233.525

. 30.438 I17JM7 003.938 7.820 755,963 153.192' 900.155

. Z300 • 320 543 • 3.153 0.019 11.772

OS 0.160 . . . 6230 4.588 tZ817

5.539 15.035 33.483 57.801 15.308 0.800 134.136 43.490 177.616

, 5.965 5M3 40.121 . i.eoo ei.7a 113.918 175.667

048 ^  154 133 1,127 1.637 3.784

2.063* . 1.242 82.339 9.S40 1.350 07249 Ze79 00234

. 101.734 . 101234 aqo 101.534

386

10.084—
3.3M
tr,479 — 00 873

0.571
11.034. 9 4mi 749

10.337-

112.586

2.006

49.579

t3JM5

162.165

300 360 120 37 3a 1.179 31,999 33.178

1.030 . 3.300 9SjB37 42.977 81.034 124,011

3.400 1.377 183 1408

96

814 1.185 9.18S

98'
17.341

2.767

36.536

3.865

3.439 3.100 20.692 10.872 3.209 1,117 46.515 47.538 90.050

0.104 13.378 7.217 0.&15 10.338 51.497 S.B75 57.172

6.147 4.170 1.740 41.329 35.041 9.853 ■ 99.167 3,912 183.090

74.059 . 31.113 - 45.771 45.ni

173.470 384.093 710.703 10.731 114 1242.119 130268 1.383.087

3.788.549 179.703 4.170.109 13.971 24.399 3,782 8.1351.513 8.135.513
05.414

- - -

8S.414
•

. 05.414

ft.SS0.497

_SLi5l

2.«a.a9o

aa.Tcs

ft.filS.S07

597.504

3.912.053

■  315.919

S31.784

07.347

7S0.4X

11.381

17.991.766

1,948.073

I

i.»<a.«77

(1.9M.8T3>

% 8.101.058 t 3.013.863 I 0.114.000 ft 3.239.589 ft 080.131 ft 831.711 ft 19.93B.037 t_

19.939.937

ft 19.030.037

8aa Notaa lo Canaelldatad Hnanelal Stalamama



SQUTHWESTERN CQMMUNiTV SERVtCeS IMC AMD RELATED CQMPANlPfi

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
■Chan'Q'e In niei assa^
•Ad}u8iinen(8 to reconcile change in nei.esseU to.

net cash from'opersting activities:.
Oepretiatipn
Lc^ on sale of property^
Loss on investment in Uinitod pahnershlps
Porgivehesl of debt ,

Oeetease (lnc<:QaM).ln Bssats:

DMAY 31.2022 AND 2021

zm ■2021

$  666;582 S 265.0W'

989.773 -
14,836
43.771

(90.609)

909.'1SS

•60.697
(S18.SQI)

Accounts recdh^ble. net
Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Security deppsits

{Decrease) increase in labilities:
Accounts payable-
Accrued expanses
Accnjed payrbD and payroll taxes
Other current' liabilities .
Refundable advances

38.041
(161,362)

7.572
(5.i43)

(32.551)
59.036

109.783
io.iie

789.667

,  (560,504)
'  •31,348-

■3,929
(2;2.42)

22,045
38.929
15.609
.  (300)

439.518

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2.421.394 '662,943

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
:Proceeds from sale of property
^rchaso of property

3;&40-
(831.642) (432.400)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (627,8021 (432.400)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Process from lorig term debt
Repayment of Ipog (errfi debt
Proceeds from Economic Injury Disaster Loan

(155.021)
85.000

(272.062)
150.000

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (155.021) (37.082)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 1.438.571 213.461

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,194,682 2.210.050

CASH AND RESTRI^D CASH TI^NSFERRED
FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS - 771.151

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR $  4.633.253 S  9.194.682

See Notea.to Consolidated Rnenclel Statements
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SQUTHWESTERM CQMMUNtTY SgRVICES. IMC AWD RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE.YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLpW INFORMATION

Cosh paid during the year for inlereil

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

Cosh and cash e^u'i^larus
Cash eacrew and reserve funds

2022

176.803

S  3.153.976
1.479.277

Total cash .and restricted cash

SUPPLEMENTAL-DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTINO

Property financed by long-term dobl

Transfer of assets from newly consoUdated LPs;
Prepaid expensas
L^ and buildings
Furniture and fixtures

Security deposits

Total transfer of assets from newly consoUdated LPs

Transfer of llaUEtles from newly consolideled LPs:
Accounts paY^bte
Accrued expenses

Long terrri'debl

Total transfer of liabUitids from newly consoiidaied LPs

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs

Partnefe' capilal previously recorded as Investrrieni In .related

'  Tot^ trertsfer of.partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

$  595.0-15

parties

tm

.175.005

(  1.722.941
1.471.741

S  4.633.263 S. 3.194.662

7B7.S99

S  36.807

3.382.003

624.491
,33.781

% $ 4,on,d82

s -  $ 57.865

46.122
1.690.298'

s -  s 1.994,285

$ -  5 2.853:948

:297

■s S 2.854.245

See Notes to Consolidated FInanclel Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATgP COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 organization AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

■Southwestern bomniunlty Services. Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit-corporation
formed as an umt)rella corporation that offers an array of services to the elderly,
disabled, arid Ipw-inconie households in the Cheshire and Sullivan counties of
New Hampshire. Various prograrris provide assistance in the areas of education,
child development, employment,' energy and its coriservation, housing, and
homelessfiess prevention. Serjvices are provided through. Southwestern
Commuriity Services, Inc.. and
Corporation. SOS Housing,- Inc.,
Developmenti inc., and various

its related corporations, SCS Management
SCS Development Corporation. ,SCS Housing
limited partnerships, as described below. The

Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helpirig therti overcome the
causes of poverty. The primary spurce of revenues is derived from'.goveirimental
corit'racts.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include .the accounts of Southwestern
Community Services, jnc. and the following entities (collectively the Organization)
as Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has both an econorhlc interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board.
AH-.sigriirtcant intercompany items|and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic'consolidated financial statements.

SCS Management Corporation
SCS Housing, Inc. |
SCS Development Corporation
SCS Housing Developmen
Drewsvllle Carriage House

Inc.
Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsvilte)

Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senibr)
Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Keene
East Side) |
Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Lirhited Partnership (Winchestfer)
Swanzey Tovvnship Housing Associates, Lirnited Partnership (Swanzey)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates; Limited Partnership
(SnowBrook) |
Keene Highland Housing Associates, Limited Partnership. (Keene Highland)
Warwick Meadow Housing-Associates. Limited Partriership (Warwick)

Basis- of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have. be;en prepared
Utilizing the accrual, basis of-accounting in accordance with generally accepted
accduhtlng priridple^.



SQUtHWElSTERNCQMMUMITY RENTED CQMPAfJlE'S

NdtES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDEdImAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Basis.of Presentation
The-consolidated financial statements of the Orgahizatibn have beert'prepared in
acconjance.; with U.S. generally
which require the Organization

accepted accpunting principles (US GAAR).
to report information regarding .its' fmahcial.

position and activities according ̂ tp the following net asset classifications. The
classes of.net assets are deterrnined by the presence or absence of donor-
irrippsSd restrictions.

Net assets-without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not syt;lject to
be expended for any purpose, indonor-imposed restrictions and may

performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These.net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors..

. Nei assets with' donor restrictions: Net assets subject to. stipulations irpppsed
by donors and grantors,. Sorrie donor restrictions are temporary In nature,;
those restrictions will be rtiel by actions of the Organization' or by passage of
tirrie. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor hasstipulated, the funds be maintaijied in perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2022 and 2021, ̂the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The- financial staternents include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information .does riot iricluda
.sufficient detail to constitute a presentation In conformity with generajly accepted
accounting'principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with, the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May .31, 2021 from
■whicli the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances
Th.e •Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable ad'va'rices until
it is expended for the purpose of
as revenue.

ie grant or contract, at which time it is-.recognized

ln«kfnd. Support
The Ocgariizatiori records various types of In-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional sen/ices .are recognized If ^
.^rvice received creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialiized-skill,
are provided by Individuals possessing those skljls, and would typically'need to be
purcha^d if not provided .by jdonatidn. Contributions of tangible assets are
recbgriized at fair value when received.

11



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED financial statements
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31/2022 AND 2021

Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted,
accPunting'p'fipcipjes.cequires management to make estimates and -assumptions
that affect the reposed atmounts of assets and liabilities and .disclos.ure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staterhenls and the>
reporled'amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ frpm those estimates.

Cash and Cash'Eauivalents

Fpr purposes of the statement of cash flows,,the Organization considers all liquid-
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at he amount rhanagement expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are stilt outstanding -after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through .a
chargd to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance fpr uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at-May 31. 2022.
The allowance for uncollectible accounts was approximately $3,600 for the year
ended May 31. 2021. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on
overdue accounts.'

Concehtration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts In several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Currerit Vulherabtlitv Due to Certain Concentrations
The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations
of .the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules .and
regulations of federal, state and jlocal regulatory agencies. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or
Legislature.. Such changes may occur with little notice or Inadequate funding to
pay for the related-cost, including' the additional administrative burden. Xo comply
with a. change.. For.the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021,.appcox|mately 80%.
arid 7i®/o. respectively, of the drganlzation's total revenue was received frorh
government ..agencies. The future nature of the Orgariization is dependent upon
conillnued support from the government.



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVIkES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED' MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021 "

Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are. stated at cost, at the date of acquisition
or at fair value- at the date of r;eceipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization, generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an exp^ected life greater than one year Oepreclatibn.is provided
for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the cost of
the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and .improvements
Vehicles-and equiprnent
Furniture and fixtures

10- .40 Years

5-10 Years

7 Years

The use of certain assets is-specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal govemment. These grants also place lieris on certain
assets and impose restnctions onjthe use of furids received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021
totaled $989,773 and $909,155, respectively.

ising costs as Incurred,
Advertising

The Organization expenses adveri

Income Taxes

Southwia.stem Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Cq^.oration are
exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 5.01(cX3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SQS Housing. Inc., SCS Developnienl Corporation and SCS Housing Development,
Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net operating loss
carryforwards available for the May 31, 2022 arid 2021 tax relurtis totaling
$1,252i122 and $1,230,191, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable Income and, if no.t used, will begiri to expire -in 2027. :SCS
Development Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $513
and $542 at May 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. These loss carryforwarids rhay be
-offset against future taxable incorne and, if not used, will begin to.expire in 20^.
SCS Housing OeVelopment, Inc.! has federal net ope.ratirig lo^ carryfonivards
totaling $55,129 and $5.9,861 at May 31, 2022 and 2021. respectively. These loss
carryforwards may be offset against ̂ ture taxable income and, if not used, will begin
to expire in 2035'.



SQUTHWESTgRN C( .AND RgLAXebCQMPANIgS

NOTES TO GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
•  FOR THE YEARS ENDEO MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The tax effects of the carryforwards as related- to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May ;31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Tax benefit from loss carryfon/vards
Valuation allowance

Deferred tax asset

$274,630
f274.630^

i  ;■

$271,025
f271.025)

S  :■

Drewsville. Troy Senior, Winchester, Keene East Side, Swanzey, S.now Brook,
Keene Highland, and Warwick are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are
not payable by, or provided for these entities. Earnings and losses are included in
the partners' federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership
earnings.. Partnerships are requirecJ to file income tax returns with the* Stale of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of lax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income tax returns for all
open years- and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is
necessary in the Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses oh an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value|is a market-based measurement, rlpt an eritity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded discloisufes about fair value
measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may use
valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost -approaches to
rheasure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in
fair value rneasurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
rneasurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic
620-10 are described as follows:

Level.1 - Inputs to the. valuation methodology are quoted prices available In
active rtiarkets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices In active markets, whicljt are either-directly or indirectly obseivable as
of the reporting- date, and fairj value can be determine through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

14



NOTES TO CONSOLlbATEE
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COMPANIES

FINANCIAL statements
MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Level 3 - Inputs.to the valuation methbdoipgy are unobservable inputs In
situations wtiere there is littie or no market activity'for the asse't or liability and
.the reporting entity.imakes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of
.the asset'.or-'liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables-, prepaid expenses, acco.unts
payable, accrued expenses, and | refundable advances- approximates fair value
because of the short itiaturity of those instruments.

Support and.Revenue Recognition

Contracts-with Customers

Program fees are reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
the .Organization expects to be entitled for providing childcare services to. its
•clients.

Gerie^ljy, the Organization bills customers and third-party payors .s.eyeral days
after the services are perforrhed. Revenue is recognized as. performance
obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are deterimined based on.the
nature of the services provided b:^ the Organization. The Organization measures
the perfortnance obligations of its childcare services to .the point when it. is no
longer required: to provide services to the client, which is generally weekly for
childcare services. These services are considered to be a single perforrnance
.dblig^trdn.

Revenue for performance obliga ions satisfied at a point in;, time is recognized
when s.ervices are provided, and the Organizatipn does not believe it is required to
provide additional services to the client.

Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the fact
that, all of the Orga.riization's performance obligations related to contracts with a
duration p.f less than one year, the Organization- has elected to apply the optional
exemption provided in PASS ASC 606-1.0-50-14(8) and. therefore is not required
to disclose the aggregate arriount of the transaction price allocated to
performance obligations that are
,the-reporting period.

unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at. the end of

The transaction price for childcare services Is based on standard charges -for
services provided to dients. UncJer the terms of the State of New, Harhpshlre
Department of Health and Human Services childcare subsidy programs,
reirriburs'ement for childcare services provided may differ from established rates.. It
is the- -Organizatio.n's policy to set its rates to 'be consistent with. cOrrent
reimbursement; rales. Therefore, amounts due do not include significant variable
consideration subject to retroac

'reviev/s and audits-.

ive rieyenue adjustments due 'to settlement of

15



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SgRVI2ES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT!?
FOR TH^YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Private Grant-Revenue and Contr butions

Private grant cqntribujions are |recognized wtien cash, securities or.other
assets, en unconditional .promise to give, or notification pf a beneficial interest Is
received. Conditiohal'promises to'give are not recognized until the conditioris on
which they depend have been sut!)stantially met. Support that is restricted by the
dorior is reported as an increasejin net assets without donor restrictions, if the
restriction expires In the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other dpnor-restricted support Isj reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a reMriclion
expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accompiiShed). net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported In the combined statemerits of activities
as net ass.ets released from restrictions.

Grants end Supodrt

Grant revenue is'd.eriyed from vjarious federal grant agreenfients and various
state and private entity passthrough grant agreements and contracts to provide
funding support of the Organization's programs and services provided by the
Organization Including childcarei child development, social, health, nutrition,
employment, language, energy, and special needs services to families enrolled
in the .Organization's programs! The Organization has evaluated its grant
agreements against applicable accounting standard guidance and determined
that the grant agreements are contributions (nonreciprocal transaction)
conditioned upon ceriain performance requirements and/or incurfence of
allowable qualifying expenses, /j^mounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenses in compliance with specific
provisions of the grant agreemen s.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units.
Revenues are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and
control of the apartment units is transferred to the lessee's. The individual
leases are for a term of one yearj and .are cancelable by the tenants. Control of
the leased units Is transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Partnership expects to be entitled to in exchange for the
leased units. The cost'incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed as incurred.



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SFRVI

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

CES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ended' MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of .providing the Varibus programs and other actrvitles have been
surnmarized on a.functlonal basis! Natura! expenses are defined by their-nature,
such as planes, rent, supplies; etc. Functional expenses are classjfied by the
type oT activity for vrhich expenses are incurred, -such, as management and
geheiel and direct program costs!. Expenses are allocated by functiori using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is pnmarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits-an "indirect cost rate^proposal for the paid IbaVe, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs

services. The Indirect cost rate is
31.2022.

BANK LINE OF CREDIT

0 the U.S'. Department of Health and Human
12% effective from June 1.-2021 through May

The Organization has a $250,000^ revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the-Wall Street Journal Prime Rate or at a
floor rate of 4%. The line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May
31, 2022 and 2021,, the: interest rate was 4%. There was no outstanding balance
at May 31. 2022 and 2021.

LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt consisted of the following at May 31:

2022 2021

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly Installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032; The note is secured by
real estate

Street);
of the Organization (NHH. 96 Main

$  117,535 $ 127,000

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments base'd on an operating
income formula applied to- affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (COFA,
96 Main Street). 25,589 27,589
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATEC

inc.

FINANGIAl STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Non-intere^st .bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment Is; deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or untir project is
"sold or refihanced. The note is

estate of the Organization (NHH, 1
secured by- real
7 Pearl).

payable to New
'deferred for 30

there is surplus

Non-Interest bearing mortgage
Hampshire Housing. Payment, is
years, through July 2032, unless'
cash from which to make a payment, or until project
is sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHH. 41-43 Central).

4.25?/o rnprtgage payable to a bank in monthly
Installments for principal and interest of $1,875
•through December, 2016, with a
.that was due January 2017.
amended during the year ended N
Is now due. December 2026. Under the amendment.
Interest rate is 4.94% and monthly installments for
principal. and interest are $1.9'5.7 The note is

balloon payment
The note vyas

ay 31. 2019; and

secured by real estate of
(People's United Bank, f^ilestones).

the
1.

Organization

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
.monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office).

Non-Interest beahnig note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. |Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults oh contract.
Jhe' note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office).

2022 2021

242.708 242.708

376:066 376,066

94,456 1.12,702

2,095,301 2,134,970

460,0.00 460,000



■NOTES to CONSOLIdATEb FINANCIAL STATEfVIENTS
FORTHE-YEARS ENDED IVIAY31.2022 AND 2021

Note-payable to a bank in monthly Installments for
p'rincipai and interest of $2,463 including interest
through 'May .2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate' provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank, of Boston which resulted in an
Interest rate of 4.67% at May 31J 2022 and 2021.
The note is .secured by realj estate of the
brgariizalion (ID Bank. Keehe Office/Community
Way).

.Non-Interest bearing note payabe to the United
States Departrrient of Housing and Urban
development.. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10®/o of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property Is used I for low income
housing- through January 2025.' The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot).

Non-.interest bearing note payabe to the United
States- Department of Housing and Urban
develQpmerit. No payment is duejand beginning in
■January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing, the property, is used | for low income-
housing through January 2025. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (HUD. 112
Charlestdvyn Road).

f^on-inlerest bearing note payable to New
■Hampshire: Housing In annual payments in. the
amount of 50% of, annual surplus cash through July
2042 at which time the remaining balance Is due.
The. note: is secured .by real estate of the
Organization (NHH, Second Chance).

Non-Interest bearing note payable, to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of the
balance is forgiven .each year through 2032 when
the remaining balance becomes due. The ndte is
:s,ecure,d by real estate of the Organization (CDBG,
§econd Chance)..

2022 2021

362,931 376,617

50.00.0 75,000

30,000 45.000

794.189 794,189

296,217 •311,80.8



COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RgLATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDEPl-MAY 31. 2022 AND .2021

Nori'interest bearing note payable to a county in
New-Hampshire, relating to. an agreement between
the City of Keene and iSGS for the purpose of
renovating Keene shelters. In tolal- SOS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. The agreement was
amended during the year ended 'May 31, 2022 to
increase the total loan to $652,091. SOS will

receive the funds as progress Is made. The note is
Secui^ by'real estate of the Organization and will
be fully forgiven providing the facility serves low-
and moderate-Income individuals for 20 years(Keene Shelters). |
5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
i543 through .August 2022. The npte .is secured by
8'vehicle (Ally, Ecbn'ollne Van).

2.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for "principal and Interest of $820
through May 2031. .The note is| secured by real
estate, of the Organization (Savings Bank of
Waipole, 45 Central; Street).

Non-interest bearing note payab e to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire. The note expires in June
2022 and payment is not necessary unless the
Organization defaults on contract. The note is
secured by real estate of the Org
Kee.ne, 139 Roxbury Street),

anization (City of

Non-interest bearing note payab e to the City of
Keene, New Hampshifei with an original balance of
$.2.40;000 reduced to $204,000 when the
Organization acquired the note from Keene
Housing in July 202,0. No -payment is due and 5%
of the :balahbe is- forgiven each year through June
2037. The. note Is secured by real estate of the
Organization (City of Keene, 139 Roxbury Street).

3.575% note payable to. a finance compariy in
monthly installments for principal and Interest of
$.650 through September 2026. The note is secured
"by a vehicle,(Le8f! Dodge Ram).

20

20^ 2021

629,280 127,215

1.581 7.815

76,974 84,395

77,100' 77.100

192,000 204,000

.30,888



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDEdImAY 31- 2022 AND 2021

3.75% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments'for pnnclpal and interest of
$530 through Nove(:nber'2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf, Promaster Van)'

4.373% note payable to a finance company In
monthly Installments for principal and interest of
$534 through Decemtjer 2026. The note Is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf. Promaster Van].

Troy Senior - Non-ihteresl bearing note payable to
a county iri New Hampshire. Paym|8hts are deferred
until the riote matures in June 2029, The riote is

secured by real estate of the Organization (COBG):

Troy Senior t Nonrinterest bearinc
New Hampshire Hou.sing Finance
energy efficient improvements

note payable to
Authority to fund

through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real, estate of
(NHH).

the Organization

Keene East Side - Non-int8re|St bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December

2028. The note is secured by real estate, of the
Organization (CDBG).

Keene East Side Non-interest bearing note
payable .to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority |(CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016,10% of the note is forgiven each
year based ori the rolling balance. The mortgage
may be released after ten years
The note is secured by rea
Organization (CDFA).

in January 2026.
estate of. the

2022

25,960

2021

26.576

640,000 640,000

140,210 140,210

900,000 900,000

116,841 139,860



SOUTHWESTERN CQMMUhilTV SERVICES. INC AND RELATED ;COMPA»JIES

NOTES TO CONSdUbATEb FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

■FOR THE YEARS ENDEDiMAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Keehe East .Side - Non-interest bearing note
•payable.tp New Hampshire Housirig to fund, energy
effieient improvements through | .the. Authority's'
•Greener Homes Program. Payment is deferred for
30 years, through August 2042[ The hote is
secured by'real estate of the Organization (NHH).

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple Interest
rfiortgage po.te^ payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole |discretion of the
lender from the. excess cash of the borrower
deterrplried by formula, secured by the
'Partnership's- land and buildings; subject to' low
Income housing use restrictions
term of the mortgage.

for the 30 year

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable to
New Harripshire Housing (AHF).|due- September
2043, payable in monthly installments of $1,698.
including interest at 2.35% secured by the.
Partnership's land and buildiogsi subjecf .to low
iiicome housing use restrictions
term of the mortgage.

for the 40 year

Snovy -Brook r Non-recourse. [ mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
Including interest -at 4.35% secured by the
.Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions
term of the mortgage.

for the "30 year

'Snow Brook - Nori-recourse, zero, interest mortgage,
note payable to New Hampshire Housirig. (AHF),
due Juris 2034, prfncipal and interest payable at
the sole, discretion of the lenderjfrom the excess,
cash of ^ the borrower determined by formula,
.secured by the Partnership's latjid and buildings,
subject to low income housing use restrictibhs for
the 30 year term of the mortgage.

22

2022 2021

228,934 228,934

286,530 287,710

341,364 353,561

431.859 436.974,

237,173 23^173



SOUTHWESTERN GQMfilUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATgP COMPANfgS

NOTES TO CONSOLIOATEO FINANCIAl. STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Winqhester - Npn-recourse mortgage note payable
to New -Hampshire Housing (AHFj), due May 2032.
payable in monthly Installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's land
and buildings,, -subject to low income housing use
restrictions -for the 30 year term
note (NHH).-

of the mortgage

Winchester • Non.-recourse, zero interest beanng
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire Housing
(FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole discretion
Of the lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, se'cured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHH).

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AMP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under the
aforementioned agreement, the loan is due upon
demand with interest accrued at|a rate of 11.67%
for the period the funds were outstanding (FederalHome Loan Bank). |
.keene Highland - Ndn-fecourse mortgage note
■payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
August 2d35.- payable In monthly installments of
$3,122, including Interest at 2.90%, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage note (NHH),

Keene Highland - 30 year, zero interest, non
recourse deferted mortgage note payable to the
Ciiy of keene, fNJew Hampshire| due June 2035,
payment of principal is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (City of Keene),

2022 2021

39,850 43.450

77,452.. 79,609

150,000 150,000

409,579 434.7"65

915,000 915;.000

23
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NOTE 4

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS-ENDEdImAV 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Warwick - 30 year, .zero Interest, non-recourse
deferred .mortgage :note payable |to the Town of
Winchester. New Hampshire due August 2036,
payrnent'of'principal Is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (Town of
Winchester). ■

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs.

Onaniortized deferred fiharicing costs

Less current portion due within one year

.500.000

11.420,143

f16.957)

11,403,186
159.974

the schedule of maturities of long

Year Ending
May 31

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Total

ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER

-500.000

11,071:^420

(17.619)

11.053,801
142.174

SIQ-911-627

erm debt at May 31, 2022 is as follows:

$

Amount

159,974

164,282

170.410

176,786

159,624
10.589.067

^11 420 143

.OAN

pufihg June 2020, the Organization received an Economic Irijury Disaster Loan
(El6L)..fr6iti the .Sniall Business lAdministration wjth proceeds in the. amp.unt of
$150:000. The" EiDL is payable over 30 years at an interest rate of 2.75% with-a
deferral of payments for. 30 months from the dale of the note. installmeritSi Including
principal and Interest, of $641 rtionthly begin in December 2022. The balance of
principal and Interest'Will be payable in December 2052. The loan is secured by
the Srhall Business Administration.
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SERVICES. INC AND RELATED COMPANiES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDEdImAY 31. 2022 AND 2021.

The scheduled maturities of the El

Year.Ending
May 31

2023

:2624
2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

OL as of May 31, 2022. were as follows:

Amount

3,585
3,665
3,788

3,893

4,001

131.048

^  i 50.000

notes FORGIVENESS OF DEBT
During -the" years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, .the Organization realized

,  forgiveness of debt .income In connection with notes payable to Community
Development. Block Grant, HtiJD and Community Development Finance.
Authority. -Forgiveness of debt jincome totaled $90,609 and $79,431 for the
years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Organization recognized forgiveness of debt of $439,070 related to the
Paycheck Protection Program during the year ended May 31. 2021. See
additional detail at Note 16..

NOTE 6 OPERATING LEASES
The Organization .leases facilities equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable
lease agreements at various finlancial institutions. Lease periods range from
month to month to 2027.. Monthly lease payments range frorTi.$900 to $3,625.
Lease expense for the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021 totaled $156,'230 ̂
and $148,143, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2022 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2023

2024

2025

2p26
2027

Total

.$

Amount

52,915

49,500

49.481

49,959.

41.576-

^  243431
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SOUTHWESTERN COMffiUmTY SERVICES. INC. AMD RgLATED COMPANIES

NOTE?

NOTE 8

NOTE 9

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE. YEARS ENDEDlMAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES
At May 31, 2022 and. 2021, the Ofganizatidn accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had
and $144,916, respectively.

earned and vested In the amount of $143,703

CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SCS Housing, Inc.
and SCS Housing Development. Inc. SCS Housing. Inc. and SCS Housing
beveloprhent. Inc. are the general partners of eight limited partnerships fonmed
to'develo'p" tow-Income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwesterri Community Services. Inc., SCS Housing. Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, IncJ have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partriershlps- totaling approximately $11,760,000 and $11,929,000 at
May 31. 2022 and 2021. respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $27,348^000 at May
31, 2022 and 2021 provides collateral on these loans.

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization Is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specifted by the governing
taws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred in
compliarice with the jaws and regulations, the Organization might be required to
repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts. If
any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May 31.
2022 and 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the years ended May 31] 2022 and 2021. SCS Housing, Inc. managed
nirie and elevert-limited partnerships, respectively. Management fees charged by
SCS Housing. Inc. totaled $237,822 and $228,239, for the years ended May 31,
2Q22 and 2021, respectively. Adljitionally. SCS Housing, inc. has advanced the
limited partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department ofHousing and Urban.Developnientj(HUD) sponsorship purposes.
The total amounts due and expected to be collects from the limited partnerships
and relat^ entities totaled $47,566 and $55,138 at May 31,'2022 and 2021.
respectively.
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RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR Trti YEARS ended' MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 10 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related companies .use .the equity
rhelhod to account for their financ al interests In the following companies:

Cityslde Housing Associates, LP
Marlborough Homes, LP
Rayspn Village Senior Housing Associates, LP
Railroad Square Senior Housing A|ssoci'ates. LR
Woodcresf Drive-Housing Associates, LP
Westmill Senior Housing. LP
Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP

2022

(9,516)
(57);

(12,539)
(2,436)
137.205

34

(18.461)

2021

$  (9.5,09)
(43)

(12,524)
(2,247)
180.727

49

M8.452)

1-9A23_Q L-mofli
■  . ■ \

SGS Housing Deyelopment, Inc. is a-0.01% partner of Cityside Ho.using
Associates, LP, Marltiorough Horhes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meado|«s Housing Associates, LP, Woodcresf Drive
Housing Associates, LP. and Alstead Senior Housing Associates. LP. a 0.10®/o
partner of Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates, LP, and a 1%-partner of
Westmill Senior Housing. LP during the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021. -

SOS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP, Swarizey Township: Housing Associates. LP, Snow Brook M.eadow Village
Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing Associates. LP during the
years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021.

the remaining 99.99% ownership interest In Keene' Highland Housing
Associates, LP and Warwick Meadow Housing Associates. LP were,acquired by
Southwestern Community Services. Inc. during the year ending; May 31, 2021
(see Note 14). and therefore
consolidated financial statements

he limited partnerships are included In the
for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021.
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NOTE 11

NOTE 12

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDEP! MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

Summarized finahciai information for entities accounted for und6f the -equity
fTnethdd/as of May '3*i, 2022 and 2'621. consists of.the following:

Total assets

Total liabilities

Capital/Member's equity

Income

Expenses

Net loss

2022 2021

14,923

36.281

15,200

37.969

$  3.306

4.713

£  53169

$  3.267

• 4.-719

f  f1.407) ijJim

RETIREMENT PLAN

The.'Organizatibn maintains a tax sheitered annuity plan under the .provisions of
Section .403(b) of the intemal Rejvenue Code. Ail employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the. plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee-has reached
one year of service. Eriipldyer contributions are at the Organization's discretion
and totaled $310,304 and $296,322 for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

RESTRICTIONS.gN NET ASSETS
Net.assets with donor restrictioris are.available for the following purposes:

NNECAC^ Annual Conference Fund
GAPS/Warm Fund
transpoil
HS Parents Association

tola) net assets with donor restrictions

2022

108,508

20,0.00
5.844

2021

16i646

•1.0l\r36
90,000
.6.967

i  i34ii2 i
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVIGgS. INC. AND RELATgQ COMPANIES

NOTE 14

NOTES to CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDEDIMAY 31. 2022 AND'2021.

NOTE 13 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS
The. board designates a pdrtidn o
GApS' fuhds. There" was $12,792
31.2022 and 2021 . respectively,

the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcello

and $12,790 designated by the board at May

TRANSFER 0F.PARTNERSH1P INTERESTS

During the year ended. May 31, 2021, Southwestern Community Services, inc.,
■acquired /a partnership -interest in| two low-income housing limited •partnerships;
Keehe Highland-and Warwick. Tijte amount paid for the'partnership ihteresfin
f<eene Highland and Warwick was :$1 each, and at the tirhe of acquisitidn,
Southwestern Conimunity Services. Inc. became the general partnen

The following is a summary of the; assets and liabilities of the partnerships af the
d.a.te of acquisitiori:

Date of Transfer

Cash
SecCirity deposits
Cash reserves
Property, net
.Other assets

Total assets.

Notes payable
Other liat^iliiles

' Total liabilities

Partners' capital

Partners' capital, .previously recorded
as an fnyestment in related parties

Partners' capital transferred

Keene
Warwick

07/01/2020 . 01/01/2021

$  156^907 $. 68.061
21,321 12.460

391.456 154,727
2.769,245 1.237,249

25.946 10.861

'3.364.875 1.483.358

1.372:220 518.078
85.048 18.939

1.457.268 537.017

1.907,607 946,341.

269 28

^^907 876 S g46.aW
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.N0tE.15

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDEP' MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

UQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The followirig .represents Southwestern Corrimunity $ervices. Inc. and relate.d
companies' financial assets as of May .31, 2022 and 2021:'

Financial assets at year end:
Cash.and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from related'party *
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total financial assets

Less .amounts not available to be .used

within, one year

2022

3,153,976
1.745.952

47,566

1.479.277

6.426.771

2021

1,722,941
1,783,993

55,138
1.471.741

5.033.813

Due-from related party
Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to-meet c

(47.566)
f1 479-2771

(1.526.8431

(5.5,138)
(1.47.1.7411

(1 ■526.6791

eheral
expenditures over the next twelve months ^  4 899 928 ^ 3 508934

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, .approximately
$2,350,000 and $1,559;000 at |May 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Jhe
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 16 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
In" April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $439,070
under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, is established as part of
the Corbnavirijs Aid, Relief and
Organization did not rneet the loan

Economic Security Act (CARES Act). If the
criteria, the unforgiyen portion .of.the PPP loan is

payable over five years at an Irlterest rate of 1%. with a deferral of payrrie.nts for the
first ten mpnths' The-Organizalion| has used the proceeds for purposes consistent
with the.PPP.and the PPP Ioan has been forgiven in full. Therefore, forgiveness of
the loan totaling $439,070 was recognized on the Consolidated'Statement of
Activities for.the.year end.ed May 31. 2021.



SOUTHWEST lND related COMPANtES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED' MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 17 RECLASSIFICATiON
■Cedajn dmounts and accounts- frpm the prior year's finahcial statements were
reclassified to enhance ^mparabilrty with the current year's.financial statements.

.NOTE 18 OTHER EVENTS
The impact of the novel coronavjirus (COVID-19) and measures to- prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's operations. The significance of thelmpacl of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse Impact oh the Organization's
financial operational results, will jbe dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the C0VID'i9 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulation's that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. The Organizatibri's business could also
be impacted should the disruptions from COVID-19'lead to changes In consumer
behavior, C0V)D-19 also makes it more challenging for management to estimate
future perfomiance of the businesses, particularly over the near to mediurh term. ■

NOTE 19 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events are events of transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before jfinanciat statements are availabie to be issued:
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactioris that provide additional-
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of finahcial position date,.
Including the estimates inherent irji the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has ^bvaluated subsequent events through February
9, 2023. the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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BOItTXWgaTFPN COMMUWfTV SggVICgg IWC.

SCHEOULE OF EXPENOflVRES OF FEDERAL-AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR EWDED MAY >t.

FEDERAL GRANTOR/
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Saa Natu Id Sdtadula of Expartdlturas of Fadaial Awarda
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N0TE1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
Includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal gO|Vemment for the year erided May 31, 2022. The
information in this Schedule is presented In accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Codje of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirerfients, Cost Principles, land Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern |Commuriily Services, Inc., it is not intended to
and does riot present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accouritirig. Such expenditures| are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are no.t
allowable or are limited as to relnhbursement.

INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de mihimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

FOOD DONATION

Npnmoheta^ assistance is reported iri the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestern Cbrhmunity Services. Inc. had no subreciplents .forthe year ended.
May 31. 2022.
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.  INDEPEMDENt AUDITORS' REFfORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED,ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE VtflTH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors 'of

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

We have audited. In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of America and the standards applicajble to financial audits contained In Government
Auditing Standards'\ssued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales, the consolidated
financial statements, of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2022. and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for .the-year then enbed, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 9. 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In plannirig and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community' Services. Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in. the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the corlsolidated financial statements, but not for the.
purpose of expressing an opinion ori the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Senrices.
Inc.'s Ihterrial control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s interrlal control.

A deficiency in internal: control exists v^hen the design or operation of a control does not allow
rrianagement or employees, In the normal cpurse of performing their assigneid functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements|on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a
deficiency, or combinatiori of deficliencies, in internal control, such that there is a. reasonable
pc^ibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements wilj riot
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

38



Our considei^tion of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was 'riot designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that, might be material weaknesses or sig'nificarit deficiencies and therefore, malerfal
weaknesses or eigniflcant deficiencies may {exist that .were not identified.-Given these
limitations, duiihg our audit we'did. not identify any •deficiencies jh- ihternal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. We identi

the accompanying schedule of findings and
consider to be a significant deficiency.

led a deficiency in'internal control, described In
questioned costs as item 2022-001 that we

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
inc.'s consolidated financial statements are fre'6 of material mlsstafement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of taws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which cpuld have a direct and material effect on'the consolidated financial
statemerits. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective.of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no Instances of nbncbmpiiaijice or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Southwestern Cbmhiunitv Services. Inc.'s Response to Findings

Government AOditing Standards requires the auditor to perform, lirriited procedures on
Southwestern Community Services, lnc.> response to the findings identified In our audit and
described In the accompanying schedule of| findings and questioned costs. Southwestem
Community. Services. Iric.'s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements
response.

and. accordingly, we express ho opinion ori the

Puroose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of irilemal coritrol and
compliance .and the results'of that testing, andlnot to provide an opinion on the .effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on corhpfiance. This report is an'integ'rai part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing " Standards in considering the
Organization's internal cohtrol and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Wolfebpro. New Hampshire
February 9. 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

■We h'aVe audited. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.-s. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation)*Gornpliance with the types of wmpliance requirements described, in the OMB
Compliance''Supplement. \hat could have a direct and material effect on each of Soiithwestem
Community Services. Inc.'s major federal 1 programs for the year ended May 31, 2022.
Spu^westem Community Services. Inc.'s rhajor federal programs are identified In the summary
of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

in our-opinibn, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. compiled, in all material'respects, with
the compliance requiremehts referred to above that could have a direct and rnaterial effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
We conducted our audit of compliance in | accordance with auditing standards- generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to finaticiai audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards] issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the' audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards "(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further .described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit, of Compliance
section of o.ur report.

We are required to be independent of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. arid to rrieet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance ^ith relevant ethical requirements felatiiig'to our
audit. We believe thet the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our au.d'rt does
not provide a legai-determinatiori of Southwestern Community Services, inc.'s compliarice.withthe compliance requirements referred to abovje.
Responsibilities of fl/lenaqement for Compilance
Management is responsible for cornpiiarice with the requirements referred to above .and for the
design',, implementation,, and maintenance of effective internal control .over compliance with the
requirements of laws; statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts' or grant
agreOments-applica.ble to Southvyestem Community Services. Inc.'s federal programs.
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Audit6rs*.Responsibliities':fo'r the Audit of.Gompliance
Our objectives, are to]obtajn reasonable .assuria.nce about whether material noncompliahce with
■the corhp.lian.ee requirements referred to abo^^e occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an qpijiidn on Sduthweslem. Community Services, Inc.'s compliancfe based on our
audit.-Reasonable .assurarice is a'high level of assurance but is not absolute .assurance and-
therefore Is not a .guarantee that an audit conducted' in accordance with^general|y accepted
auditing standards, -Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance w.ill always-
detect materiarndncompliance when it exists, pie risk of riot detectirig material inoncqmpliance
fesuttlpg from frautl is hlgher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusibn,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepreseritatlons, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliahce with the compliance requirerrjents referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of me report on compliance about Southwestern
Community Services- Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major tederal program
as a whole.

In.performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards,'an6 the Uniform Guidance, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit:

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or
errpr. apd design and perfomi audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures Include examining, on a tap basis, evidence regarding Squthwesterri
Community Sen/ices, Inc.'s'compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above.and performing such other procedures as w.e considered necessary in the
circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Southwestern Community Services, Inq.'s internal
controj over compliance relevant to the'audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance In accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opiniph on the effectiveness of Southwestern CbrPrnunity
Servibes, Inc/s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

.We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope, and timing of the'audit and any significant deficiencies and rhateriai

.weaknessesila internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit,

Report on.'Intemal Control Over Compliance
A defiq'ehcy in internal contrp/ over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over cbrhpllarice does not allow management! or employees, in the normal couree of performing
,their assigned functions, to prevent, or delect and correct, noricompliance with a type of
cbmpliance requirerrierit of a federal program |on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
cdntrol over compliance- '\s:a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such ttiat there-is a reasonable-possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliarice requirernent of a federal program yyill not be prevented, or detected arid con;ected.
pri a timely basis. A slgpificaht deficiency in internal control over compliarice Is a deficiency, or a
combination of defi.ciencies, in internal con rol over conipliance with
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■requirement of a federal prc^gram that is less severe than a material weakness in Internal contml
over compliance, yet important enough to men attention by those charged -with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal cqhtrol over compliance was for the limited purpose described In
the.Audltors' Responsibilities for fhe Audit of Compliance section above and'was not designed to
identify all deficiencies In internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deflciencie.s in Internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our
audit, we did not Identify.any deficiencies in intWnal control over compliance that vye consider to
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identiified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiyeness of
internal co:nlrol over compliance, Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed..

The purpose of this report on.internal control over compliance is solely to describe the'.scope of
our testing of internal control over complian'ce and the result? of that testing based on the
requVremerits of the Uniform Guidance. Accprdingly. this report is mo.t suitable for any other
purpose.

Wolfebpro, New Hampshire
February 9, 2023

42



COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF l:tNDINGS,AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31; 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDfTORS' RESULTS

1. The'auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on. Whether the consolidated'ftnancial.
statements of Southwestern Cbmmunity
prepared in accofdance with GAAP.

Services, Inc. and related Gompanies were

2. One significant deficiency disclosed during the -audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported, in the Independent Auditors! Report on Internal Cdntrol Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance arid Other Matters^ Based on an Audit of Financial
Staternehts Perforwed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No Instances of nonc'ompliance materia to . the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, :lnc; and related companies, which would be required
to be reported in accordance with Goverrlment Auditing Standards were disclosed during
the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Repprf on Compliance for Each Major Program and
■on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors'" report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on ail major federal prograrhs.

6. Audit ,findings that are required to be reported In accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)
are reported .in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Humari
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance. ALN 93.568; U.S. Department of
Treasury; Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023; and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas, ALN 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Sputhvvestem Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS • FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

2022-001 - Lack of accurate and timely re.conciliatioris

Criteria: internal controls ensuring timely and accurate reconciliations.

Condition: There was a delay in accurate account reconciliations at May 31, 2022.
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Cause:.The Organization's internal contro policies-and procedures were hot followed as
designed.-

E^ct: Significant and material journal entries were provided by the client to ensure
accurate financial staterhehts-.

Context: Reconciliations were hot prepared timely, which resulted in late client entries
many of which were a result of audit testing and inquiries madehy auditor.

Recommendation: Internal control policies and procedures should be followed throughout
the year to ensure accurate and timely reconciliations.

Views of Responsible Officials: The Organization acknowledges that Internal control
poiicl'e's relative to certain reconciliations were not followed as established. The
Organization's Leadership and the Fiscal Department Leadership is aware that is this not
acceptable and the expectation is that all fiscal cohtmls and policies are to be followed in a
timely and accurate manner.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SQUTHWgSTgRN COMMUNITY SERVICES .INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR EKIDED MAY 31. 2022

There were rio findings'or qyestioned costs that were required to be reported Writhe Schedule-
of FIri'dings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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Private

Sector

PUBUC

Sector

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Board of Directors - 2023 Composition

Cheshire County,

Constituent

Sector

Ron Nason

SCS Tenant

Heather Cameron

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Kevin Watterson, Chair

Clarke Companies (retired)

Dominic Perkins,
Treosurer/Secretory
Senior VP, Retail Administration

Savings Bank of Walpole

jay Kahn
State Senator. District 10

Andy Bohannon
Parks. Recreation and Facilities

Director

City of Keene

Sullivan County

Mary Lou Muffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food
Shelf

Alstead Friendly Meals

Anne Seattle

Newport Service Organization

David Edktns, Vice-Chofr
Town of Walpole

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education

River Valley Community College

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager

Liz Emerson

Planning and Zoning
Administrator

Town of Charlestown



SCS LIHEAP

Key Persoinel 2023-2024

f. 1

Name Job Title , 1 Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Beth Daniels Executive Director 1 $I2I«000 0% 0

Terra Rogers Director of Energy &
Emolovmcnl Proerams

S61,360 50% S30.680

Sheri Saraceni Assistant Director of Energ)
Services

S44,720 50% $22,360 .



Beth Daniels

Experience

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Chief Executive Officer
• Oversight of agency
• Working closely with the Board of Directors
•  Supervision of Senior Suff
•  Agency compliance

Chief Operating Officer

•  Oversight for all genera) operations of the agency
•  Supervision of Program Directors
•  Agency-wide initiatives

• Grant compliance
Director of Energy and Employment Programs

07/2021 - Present

03/2016-07/2021

10/2008-02/2015

1/2004-03/2006

• Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor
Helping Neighbor, Senior Energy lAssisiance, Weathcrization, HRRP, CORE, arid
Assurance 16 as well as the employment programs Workplace Success, Work
Experience Program, and WIA.

Career Navigator, Families at Work 04/2006 - ! 0/2008

Second Start, Concord, NH
Career Development Specialist
•  Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
•  Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
• Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
•  Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Southwestern Commuaity Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
•  Responsible for all daily operatioris of housing program, rules, and regulations
• Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
•  Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes

Case Manager, Welfare-to-Work | 05/2000-09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
•  . Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services,

Immigration & Naturalization Services, community agencies, and SCS



Education and Training

Leadership Monadnock 2016

Grant Writing Workshop 05/2012
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Interveotion 2012
Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training 2010-2011
Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers 11/2007
CareerTrack

How to Supervise People 11/2007
CareerTrack

Career Development Facilitator Training 09/2005
National Career Development Association
120-hour NCDA training

Certified Workforce Development Specialist 06/2005
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bloodbome Pathogens 01/2003
Home Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services 05/2002

Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

Proiects/APDointments

Current Board Member, Monadnock Collaborate

Current Member, Executive Committee, Leadership Council for Healthy Monadnock

Current Member, Sullivan Count Public Health Advisory Council

Created Emerging Leaders Program, SCS

References A vailable



Terra Rogers

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current.Director of Energy and Employment Programs with 15+ years

of experience in a non-profit setting.

•  Personnel Relations

•  Strong PC skills

•  Human Resources

•  Problem Soiving

MANAGEMENT AND SOCIAL SERVICE SKILLS

•  Lead and Motivate •

•  Excellent Communication •

•  Community Outreach •

•  Decision Making •

Interviewing

Database Management
Training and Development
Maintain Confidentiality

EXPERIENCE

11/2006- CurrentSouthwestern Community Services {Keene/Claremont, NH]

Director of Energy and Employment Programs (11/2015- Current)

Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistan'ce, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor.
Senior Energy Assistance and Assurance 16.

WlOA Employment Counselor (11/2006-11/2015}

Provide career management services to eligible customers with a focus on helping them obtain

vemploymertt. Follows stringent guidelines and extensive documentation to help ensure

program is running with federal and state government regulations. Serves as a liaison between

customers, instructors, school administrators and businesses. Strong understanding of

community resources to help provide appropriate referrals throughout the community.

Staples [various locations throughout VT, N E, NT and NH] 9/1996-11/2006

Operations Manager

Consistently promoted over a 10 year period. Established and maintained all store operations.

Provided high end custorher service which helped to continuously exceed maximum sales goals.

Fulfilled a broad range of HR functions, including recruiting, onboarding, evaluations, staff

training, administering benefits, overseeing disciplinary action and managing store personnel.

Managed staff payroll, store scheduling, company marketing and overall store presentation.

EDUCATION

Granite State College- Concord, NH

Bachelor of Science (BS) in Behavioral Science (Magnum Cum Laude) Graduated June 2012



Sheri Saraceni

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Assistant Director of Energy and Employment Programs

•  Personnel Relations

'• Strong PC skills
•  Human Resources

•  Problem Solving

MANAGEMENT SKILLS

•  Lead and Motivate

•  Excellent Communication

•  Community Outreach -

'• Decision Making

•  Interviewing

•  Database Management

•' Training and Development

•  Maintain Confidentiality

PROFESSIONAL WORK HISTORY

8/2021- CurrentSouthwestern Community Services [Keene/Claremont, NH)

Assistant Director of Energy and Employment Programs

Help assist current Director with overseeing all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric

Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor, Senior Energy Assistance and Assurance 16.

Great Clips Salon [Keene, NH] 10/2014'8/2021
Salon Manager

Maintained all salon operations. Provided high end guest experience by providing a customer-

oriented atmosphere through extensive staff customer service training. Fulfilled a broad range
of MR functions, including recruiting, onbjoarding, evaluations, staff training, administering
benefits, overseeing disciplinary action and managing salon personnel. Maintained staff
scheduling, supply ordering, salon presentation/marketing and attended community events.

C and S Wholesale Grocers [Keene, NH]

Accounts Receivable Analyst

Development and application of all EFT Customers

EDUCATION

Keene Beauty Academy Park Ave- Keene, NH

NH Cosmetology Licensure

10/2006-5/2011

Graduated February 2013


